UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING

November 12, 2025 4:30 p.m.

626 443 2297
www.upperdistrict.org
248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 - Monrovia, CA. 91016

info@usgvmwd.org

Securing Water Resilience for the San Gabriel Valley



248 E. Foolhill Bivd,, Suite 200
Monrovia, CA, #1014

FrE2E-2a3-22%7 I info@usgvmwd.org uppenyaler.ong

— A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF Wednesday, November 12, 2025
WS AL WA ST DIRECTORS 4:30 P.M,

AGENDA
1. CALLTO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA [1]

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

As provided under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public may address the
Board on items considered on this agenda. Please complete the appropriate speaker's card and
submit it to the Board Secretary. A three-minute fime limit on remarks is requested.

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS [2]

(a) Water Resources and Facility Management Committee (Trevifo, Chair - Garciq,
Vice-Chair) Minutes of meeting held on November 3, 2025 enclosed.

(b) Administration and Finance Committee (Santana, Chair - Trevifio, Vice-Chair)
Minutes of meeting held on November 4, 2025 enclosed.

[c) Government Affairs and Community Outreach Committee (Fellow, Chair-Chavez,
Vice-Chair) Cancelled due to lack of quorum.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR [1]

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on October 22, 2025 at
4.30 p.m.

(b) List of Demands
(c) Financial Reports — September 2025

1. Financial Statements
2. Quarterly Report on District Investments
3. Director's Public Outreach




248 E. Foothil Bivd., Suite 200 e ! _
£ InfoSusgvmmwd. .
Monrovia, CA, §1014 riuny L org upperwater.org

8. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS [1]

(a) Adopt Resolution No. 11-25-672 Honoring and Commemorating the Outstanding
Service and Accomplishments of Ruben Gallegos, Community Qutreach
Specialist, upon his retirement. (Resolution No. 11-25-672 enclosed)

Recommendaltion

Staff recommends the Board of Directors consider the adoption of Resclution No.
11-25-672, as presented.

(b) State Legislative Wrap-up (Steve Baker from Aaron Read & Associates, LLC will provide a
presentation)

Recommendation
This item is for information only. Mo action is anticipated.

(c) Additional Discretionary Payment for Upper Water's Unfunded Accrued Liability with
CalPERS and Contribution to the California Employers' Pension Prefunding Trust Fund.
(Staff memorandum enclosed)

Recommendation
The Administration and Finance Committee recommends the Board of Directors:

1. Authorize an additional discretionary payment of $500.000 to CalPERS to
reduce Upper Water's unfunded accrued liability related to pension.

2. Awuthorize additional contribution to the California Employers' Pension
Prefunding Trust Program (CEPPT) of $500,000.

(d) Purchase of Untreated Water for Cyclic Storage (Staff memorandum enclosed)

Recommendation

The Administration and Finance committee recommends the Board of
Directors authorize the General Manager to purchase up to 7,500 acre feet
of untreated water for Upper Water's cyclic storage account.

(e) ADHOC Committee Report - Puente Hills Regional Park Sponsorship (Staff
memorandum enclosed)

Recommendation

Staff is seeking direction from the Board regarding the ADHOC Sponsorship
Committee's review and recommendation of the Puente Hills Regional Park
Sponsorship.




ﬂ;ﬂi"’-ﬁ"&:m‘h:“ﬁ 200 7 626-443:2297 t infogusgvmwd.org upperwater.org
O |vss

—
-

(f) Federal Bill Summaries and Positions: H.R. 4733, H.R. 5414, H.R. 5513, H.R. 5564, and
H.R. 5661 (Staff memorandum enclosed)

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve federal bills H.R._4733, H.R. 5414,
H.R. 5513, H.R. 5544, and H.R. 5441, which align with Upper Water's 2025-24
Legislative Policy Principles adopted by the Board in January 2025,

(g) Soto Resources Contract (Staff memorandum enclosed)
ec endatio

Staff recommends the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager
to execute a professional services contfract with Soto Resources for as-
needed services for grant assistance in the amount not to exceed $75,000
through June of 2027.

(h) FY 25-26 Water Education Grant Program (Staff memorandum enclosed)

Recommendalion

Staff recommends that funding of 24 grant applications for the
Water Education Grant Program in FY 25-26, totaling $19.221.09.

7. INFORMATION ITEMS (2]

(a) Press Releases and News Articles

10. ATTORNEY'S REPORT [2]

11. ENGINEER'S REPORT [2]

12.GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT [2]

13. METROPOLITAN REPORT [2]

14. WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY REPORT [2]
15. WATERMASTER REPORT [2]

16. AB 1234 COMPLIANCE REPORT [2]

17. DIRECTOR'S COMMENTS [2]

18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS [1]

19. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION — None.




248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 - . ’
"CA. 71015 P 26-443-2297 £ infoffusgvmwd.ong upperwater.ong

20. ADJOURNMENT - To a regular meeting of the Board of Directors to be held on
December 10, 2025 at 4:30 p.m. at 248 E. Foothill Blvd. Room #103, Monrovia, CA 21016.

LEGEND: [1] INDICATES ACTION ANTICIPATED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THIS ITEM
[2] INDICATES INFORMATION ITEM - NO BOARD ACTION NECESSARY

PRESIDENT JENNIFER SANTANA, PRESIDING

American Disabilities Act Compliance (Government Code Section 54954.2(q)) m

To request special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at (424) 443-2297.




e Sila. 200 " 6260432297 ¢ Into@usgvmwid.org
s s A A MEMORANDUM
6. ()
COMMITTEE
REPORT
November 3, 2025
10: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: WATER RESOURCES AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE WATER RESOURCES AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - NOVEMBER 3, 2025

ATTENDANCE: Charles Trevifio (Chair) Evelyn Rodriguez
Katarina Garcia (Vice-Chair) Venessa Navarette
Jennifer Santana Steve O'Neill
Ed Chavez Lenet Pacheco
Tom Love Anteneh Tesfaye

1. Call to Order.

2. Public Comment. None,

3. Golden Mussel Status Report.
General Manager, Tom Love, provided an update on the Golden Mussel. He explained that several
local agencies, including Upper Water, have been involved in discussions regarding the golden
mussel due to its potential impact on water delivery to the San Gabriel Valley.

He shared that Upper Water and other San Gabriel Valley Water Agencies (SGV Water Agencies)
have held several meetings with the County of Los Angeles to obtain feedback as the SGV Water
Agencies develops a Golden Mussel Conirol Plan for all system connections. Mr. Love also noted
that the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster has been in discussions with the County to consider
modifications to the existing spreading agreement. These modifications would include provisions
ensuring collaboration with the County to address any potential impacts if the golden mussel enters
the system.

Mr. Love stated that Upper Water Is evaluating pre-treatment methods to prevent the spread of the
golden mussel however it is unlikely that practical and economical pre-treatment methods that will
be 100 percent. He added that by December, Upper Water expects to respond to the County's
comments and finalize the Control Plan, allowing the County to determine whether it agrees to the
revised spreading agreement.

Director Santana asked whether Upper Water would be responsible for the cost of any cleanup.

Director Chavez asked if the golden mussel is currently traveling through the State Water Project and
whether Upper Water will be prepared once it reaches the area.

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT



Director Trevifio requested a written summary of the golden mussel issue.

4. MWD Updates.
» Climate Adaptation Masterplan for Water,

Tom Love provided a brief overview of MWD's Climate Adaptation Master Plan for Water
(CAMP4W). He explained that MWD is evaluating a portfolio of projects—such as the Delta
Conveyance, Pure Water Southern California, and Sites Reservoir—to determine how they can
help reduce the frequency or likelihood of future water shortages.

He noted that MWD's goal remains to achieve 100 percent reliability, but that the agency must
also consider the costs of achieving that goal and make decisions based on affordability and
other key factors. Mr. Love then discussed MWD's evaluation of surplus storage and presented
data on water use, surplus supplies, and conveyance capacity.

He also mentioned that establishing a storage agreement with Watermaster to store a large
volume of water—ensuring MWD has access to it during dry years—could be beneficial for both
parties.

Director Santana asked how Watermaster and California Domestic Water Company feel about
Upper Water's efforts to move forward with these discussions.

5. Water Supply Update.
Tom Love reported that MWD's current water supply estimate for this year is 1.94 million acre-feet,
with an estimated demand of 1.74 million acre-feet. He noted that MWD has indicated actual
demands are trending slightly lower, allowing approximately 200,000 acre-feet of water to be moved
into storage—some of which has been directed to the San Gabriel Valley.

He added that reservoir storage remains at a record 3.8 milion acre-feet, putting Upper Waterin a
strong position as the year comes to a close.

Director Trevifio asked how much water Upper Water currently has in storage.

4. Other Matters.
Tom Love mentioned that during the upcoming Administrative/Finance Committee meeting, there
will be an item to approve the purchase of 7.500 acre-feet of water from MWD's cyclic account. He
also noted that board previously approved a water purchase agreement with Watermaster, under

which Watermaster will cover the gross MWD Readiness-to-Serve (RTS) charge for all Watermaster
purchases.

NEXT MEETING: Monday, December 1, 2025, at 4:30 p.m.
cc: General Manager



248 E. Foothill Bivd., Suite 200 2
U PPE R Monrovia, CA, 71014 F: 626-443-2297 £ info@usgvmwd.org

WATER

e e e MEMORANDUM
6. (b)
COMMITTEE
REPORTS
November 4, 2025
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING AND SPECIAL
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - November 4, 2025
ATTENDANCE: Jennifer Santana, Chair Patty Cortez Jeffrey McKennan (Zoom)
Charles Trevino, Vice-Chair Venessa Navarrette Scott Manno (Zoom)
Katarina Garcia Alexis Siiva Steven O'Neill (Zoom)
Thomas Love Jessica Hernandez
Evelyn Rodriguez Lenet Pacheco

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment. None

3. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025.

Evelyn Rodriguez, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Mr. Jeffrey McKennan, Audit Supervisor, and Mr.
Scott Manno, Engagement Partner, from Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott (RAMS) fo present the
results of the fiscal year 2024/2025 audit. Mr. McKennan reported that the District received an
unmodified (clean) opinion, indicating the financial statements were fairly presented in all material
respects. He also confirmed that no audit findings were reported and internal controls were deemed
appropriate for a small agency.

Ms. Rodriguez presented key financial highlights including significant changes in current assets, capital
assets, current labilities and non-current liabilities. She reported the District ended the fiscal year with
a positive change in net position of approximately $407,000. She also noted that a new disclosure was
added to the report noting the District’s dependence on Metropolitan Water District as its primary
water supplier,

This item was presented for information purposes only. No action was taken by the Committee. The
final ACFR will be included in the December agenda for Board acceptance.

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




4. Additional Discretionary Payment for Upper District's Accrued Liabil

to the California Employers' Pension Prefunding Trust Fund.
Ms. Rodriguez presented staff's recommendation for the board to authorize an additional $500,000

discretionary payment to CalPERS to reduce the District's unfunded accrued pension liability and an
additional $500,000 contribution to the California Employers' Pension Prefunding Trust Program. She
reported that between FY 2022 and 2024, the District made $2 million in extra payments, improving its
CalPERS funded ratio from 72% to 88%. She added that as of June 30, 2024, the remaining unfunded
liability is $1.83 milion and that the proposed payment would yield an estimated $281.000 in interest
savings over 10 years. She also reported that the District's pension trust fund, which can only be used
for pension-related costs, currently has a balance of $1.78 milllion as of September 30, 2025, earning
an annual return of approximately 9.74%.

¢ with CalPERS and Contribution

Staff and committee members discussed maintaining appropriate funding levels to avoid overfunding.

Following discussion, the Administration and Finance Committee recommended that the Board of
Directors authorize an additional discretionary payment of $500,000 to CalPERS to reduce Upper
Water's unfunded accrued liability related to pension and an additional contribution to the Califomia
Employers' Pension Prefunding Trust Program (CEPPT) Program of $500,000.

5. Purchase of Untreated Water for Cyclic Storage.
Tom Love, General Manager, presented staff's recommendation for the Board of Directors to authorize

the purchase of up to 7,500 acre feet of unireated water to replenish the District's cyclic account,
ahead of Metropolitan Water District’'s (MWD) anticipated water rate increases. He stated that staff
has reviewed reserve balances and projected cash flow to ensure that the District has sufficient funds
to support the purchase without affecting operations.

Following discussion, the Administration and Finance Committee recommended that the Board of
Directors authorize the General Manager to purchase up to 7,500 acre-feet of unfreated water for
Upper District's cyclic storage account.

6. Quality Investment Report -~ September 30, 2025.

Ms. Rodriguez provided an update on water sales, revenues, expenses, and district investments for the
first quarter of the fiscal year 2025/2026. She reported that as of September 30, 2025, Upper District has
sold 5.100 acre-feet of untreated water, with year-end Watermaster purchases expected to raise total
sales o about 30,000 acre-feet. She stated most program expenses are fracking on budget. She then
presented the District's cash and investments with LAIF earning 4.34% for the quarter and funds
managed by Chandler Asset Management having a 3.84% vyield as of September 30", She reported
District investments comply with the investment paolicy. Lastly, she stated that the District has sufficient
funds to meet operational cash flow needs for the next six months.

Page20of 3



7. Policy Manual Update.
Patty Cortez provided an update on the comprehensive policy manual revision project, which aims

to be completed within the next six months. She stated the manual is being reorganized for clarity,
with sections covering board policies, as well as administrative, finance, public cutreach, and a new
section on water resources policies. She also reviewed the proposed schedule for bringing updated
policies to the committee and board for approval, beginning December 10,

Ms. Cortez and the committee recognized Alexis Silva for her key role in reorganizing the manual,
creating the new table of contents and drafting initial revisions.

8. Other Matters.
None.

NEXT MEETING: Tuesday, December 02, 2025, at 4:30 p.m.

cc: General Manager

Page 30f 3



UPPER BAN GANBEL VALLLY
MALBGCIF AL WATTE DHATH

13498

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 7.(a)

EEQU|DF Board Meeﬁng Minutes Minutes

Wednesday, October 22, 2025 | 4:30pm

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 4:30pm at the District office located at 248 E.
Foothill Bivd, Em. 103, Monrovia, California. The presiding officer was Vice President Anfhony Fellow.

ROLL CALL

OTHERS PRESENT

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT

COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONSENT CALENDAR

DIRECTORS Chavez, Garcia, Fellow, and Santana

PRESENT:

DIRECTORS Trevino

ABSENT:

STAFF Tom Love, General Manager, 3teve O'Neill, District
PRESENT: Counsel; Stan Chen, District Engineer; Patty Cortez,

Assistant General Manager; Evelyn Rodriguez, Chief
Financial Officer; Venessa MNavamrette, EBxecutive
Assistant/Board Secretary | Katherine Vazquez, Water
Resources Analyst |; Yesenia Bugarin, Intern

Jose Martfinez, Nabil Saba, Chris Lancaster, Kelly Gardner, Randall
Meudeck, Jacquelyn Mercado

On motion by Vice President Fellow, second by Treasurer Garcia, the
agenda was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: GARCIA, CHAVEL, FELLOW AND SANTANA
NOES: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

ABSENT: TREVINO

None.
None.

On motion by Vice President Fellow, seconded by Treasurer Garcia,
the consent calendar was approved by the following vote:

AYES: GARCIA, CHAVEL, FELLOW AND SANTANA
NOES: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

ABSENT: TREVINO

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on
September 24, 2025 at 4:30 p.m.

(b) List of Demands
(c) Financial Reports — August 2025
1. Financial Statements

2. Director's Public Quireach



DELTA CONVEYANCE EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS

13499

Mr. Randall Neudeck, Manager of Bay-Delta Programs, Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California (MWD provided an overview of
mMetropoiitan's efforls fo strengthen the Delta's freshwater pathway
from an emergency measure to a key reliability strategy focusing on
near-term improvements, asset protection, and stronger partnerships
alongside the Delta Conveyance Project. He reported that the Delta
links California’s major water systems—the Sacramento and San
Joaquin Rivers which carry flows to the San Francisco Bay and
supports deliveries to the Central Valley, Southern California, and the
Bay Area. He stated that Metropolitan receives an average of about
one-million-acre feet of water from the Sacramento watershed
which provides about 18 million acre-feet annually, the San Joaquin
about 3 million, and together they feed the state and federal pumps
that move water south from the Delta.

He then reported that Metropolitan owns four islands in the Delta
along the freshwater pathway and has upgraded 15 miles of levees
to strengthen reliability. With no single owner of the Delta's levee
system, this helps protect key assets. Even with the proposed Delta
tunnel, most water deliveries depend on this route.,

After a 2008 Department of Water Resources study, Metropolitan and
seismic experts analyzed Delta levee risks from earthquakes and
floods. A recent levee slip on Victoria Island showed ongoing
vulnerability along the freshwater pathway. The emergency pathway
was designed as a temporary, low-cost backup to move about 30%
of supplies if levees failed, supported by diversion structures, barriers,
and rock stockpiles. Major impacts from such an event would mainly
offect the State and federal projects and Contra Costa Water
District.

With the Delta Conveyance Project now a single tunnel, about 80%
of water will continue to flow through the Delta, making local
reliability critical. Metropolitan is pursuing near-term improvements,
levee work, and habitat projects on its four Delta islands. including
raising Delta smelt and exploring potential carbon storage., while
planning for long-term water supply security,

Vice President Fellow and Mr. Neudeck briefly discussed the debate
within Metropolitan over whether to keep or sell the four Delta islands.

Vice President Fellow and Mr. Neudeck discussed that levee
improvements for key Delta water conveyance pathways could cost
between $400 milion and $700 million, while full Delta fordification
could cost approximately $3-5 billion. These investments could
substantially improve water supply security in the event of seismic or
flooding disruptions. Mr. Neudeck dlso reported that the Sites
Reservoir project remains under development and can function with
or without the Delta Conveyance Project. A board decision on
whether to proceed is expected by summer 2026, with the project
relying heavily on federal funding due to curent Metropolitan
budget constraints.

President Santana, Mr. Neudeck, and the General Manager briefly
discussed emergency preparedness and water reliability in the event



NOMINATION OF TWO UPPER WATER
REPRESENTATIVES TO THE MAIN SAN
GABRIEL BASIN WATERMASTER FOR
CALENDAR YEAR 2026

INFORMATION ITEMS

ATTORNEY'S REPORT

13500

of a major Delta failure. Imported water deliveries could be disrupted
for up to six months. Diamond Valley Lake's 800,000 acre-feet of
storage-remains-a criticalemergency resourceand with new levee
designs. the outage period could potentidlly be reduced to zero.

The General Manager provided an update on the MWD Integrated
Resource Plan, indicating no improvement in water shortage
projections since 2020. He reported that Mefropolitan would need an
additional 300,000 acre-feet of new core supply under the optimistic
Scenario C.

Secretary Chavez and Mr, Neudeck briefly discussed the potential
impact if the single-tunnel design reverted to the earlier two-tunnel
proposal. Mr. Neudeck stated that retumning to a two-tunnel
configuration would require restarting the entire environmental and
permitting process, including CEQA and related federal reviews,
resulting in an estimated six-to-eight-year delay and substantial
additional cost.

This item was for information only. No action was taken by the Board.

Vice President Fellow nominated himself and President Santana. No
ofher nominations were received.

On mofion by Vice President Fellow, second by Treasurer Garcia, the
Board of Directors appointed President Santana and Vice President
Fellow as Upper Waler's representatives to the Main San Gabriel Basin
Watermaster for Calendar Year 2024 by the following vote:

AYES: GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA
NOES: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

ABSENT:  TREVINO

The following items listed on the agenda were presented as
informational items and ordered received and filed:
+ Press Releases and News Arficles

The District Counsel provided a brief update on the new state
legislation expanding Assembly Bill [AB) 1234 ethics and financial
training requirements for public agencies effective January 1, 2026.
The new Senate bill will expand the requirements to: Department
heads and administrative officers and they must complete both ethics
fraining and new fiscal and financial management training. He
reported that the training requirements apply to officials and staff
involved in finance, bonding. budgeting, or auditing functions. A two-
hour training session every two years will be required.



ENGINEER'S REPORT

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

13501

The District Engineer reporied there are no updates at this fime for San
Gabriel County Water Disfrict and Sunnyslope Water Company water
connections: He-reported a-complete Emergency Response-Plan-is
being complied and will be brought to the Board to receive and file.
He reported that are no new updates at this fime for the reactivation
of MWD Interconnection USG-07 for City of Monrovia. He then
reported that the Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) is being updated
with information received from MWD reliability workshop focusing on
local water supply reliobility scenarios without Delta Conveyance and
Fure Water projects. Local planning efforts will focus on maximizing
groundwater basin storage and coordinafion with Watermaster and
local producers to sustain supplies during potential MWD reliability
reductions. Lastly, he provided an update on the boundary changes
stating that Three Valleys Municipal Water District plans to submit its
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) application for
boundary updates by the end of the year.

The General Manager reported that Upper Water, Watermaster, Three
Valleys MWD, San Gabriel Valley MWD, and Stetson Engineers are
collaborating to draft Golden Mussel Control Plans for discussion with
Los Angeles County Public Works. The County requested suspension of
water deliveres due to the potential spread of golden mussels. Priority
is being given to maintaining deliveries to canyon spreading grounds
to protect local groundwater levels and production for Azusa, Covina
Valley Water Company, and City of Glendora, He reported control
plans include pre-treatment measures to prevent infestation before
delivery; containment and post-treatment/drying to prevent spread
downstream; monitoring and testing for effectiveness. He reported that
USG-3 connection presents challenges as it released directly to the
riverbed, making full containment difficult, especially during flood
events. He stated Watermaster has begun discussions with LA County
Public Works to potentiolly amend the longstanding spreading
agreement to address golden mussel-related contingencies.
Coordination continues with California Department of Fish and Wildlife,
which will review and approve control plans. He reported the progress
is positive and regulations for Golden Mussels are still being developed.

He then provide an updated on MWD Climate Adaptation Master Plan
(CAMP) stating that MWD and member agencies will begin identifying
project and portfolios for evaluation through the CAMP evaluation
process,

The General Manager reported that recent storm activity brought the
region to approximately S00% of average rainfall for this point in the
water year. State Waler Project storage remains strong. He also
reported that Upper Water is preparing a year-end purchase of
approximately $10 million in water to replenish its cyclic storage
account, particularly beftore the 8% MWD rate increase effective
January 1.

Lastly, he reported that two long-terrn employees — Evelyn Rodriguez
|CFO) and Ruben Gallegos — have submitted retirement notices. He
plans to hire an interim accounting director to work alongside Evelyn
during the transition and to assist in evaluating potential organizational
restructuring to improve efficiency. The CFO position will not be
immediately advertised until the transiion aond assessment are



METROPOLITAN REPORT

WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY REPORT

WATERMASTER REPORT

AB 1234 COMPLIANCE REPORT

13502

complete. He expressed appreciation for both employees’ long service
and dedication.

Vice President Fellow provided an update on the selection of the new
General Manager at MWD, Sivaji Deshimukh, current GM of the Inland
Empire Ulilities Agency, was unanimously selected as MWD's next
General Manager. He will serve as GM Designate starting November |
and officially take over January 1. He is recognized as a highly capable
and direct leader with over 25 years of engineering experience. He
then reported that MWD held a ceremony on October # naming the
Inland Outlet Tower at Diomond Valley Lake after former General
Counsel Gregory Taylor. The event honored Taylor's key role in
developing Diamond Valley, which added over 800,000 acre-feet of
regional water storage. He also reported that he presented to the
Economic Partnership's Legislative Committee on the Delia
Conveyance Project urging confinued advocacy for the Delta
Conveyance Project in Sacramento. He mentioned there is a new
travel policy in the state of California allowing directors to bring spouses
or partners on official water-related trips (e.g.. Colorado River, Delta) if
they personally cover their expenses; counsel will confirm details. Lastly,
he reported that MWD's Executive Committee and Special Water
Committee will meet next Tuesday.

Secretary Chavez reported that the Water Quality Authority Board
participated in ACWA and ACWA Region 8 elections. Dr. Fellow was
elected as Region 8 Chair.

Ms. Kelly Gardner provided a report on the Key Well Elevation was 249.7
feet on October 17, below the previous month but above the target
range for the first time since 2005. She reported that the Canyon
storage was about 18,150 acre-feet which is 22% of average, with
continued inflows at the San Gabriel and Morris Reservoirs. She reported
that water quality remains good., 446 wells were sampled in September
with no shutdowns reported. Lastly, Board members were encouraged
to attend the San Gabriel Valley Water Association Quarterly Breakiast
on November 13. Confirmed speakers include Deven Upadhyay and
Robert Ferrante, who will lead a joint discussion on the value of Pure
Waler projects to the region.

Vice President Fellow thanked Kelly and Linda for attending MWD
meetings and promoting Pure Water, emphasizing the need for LA
support.

A summary report was provided in the agenda packet,



DIRECTORS' COMMENTS

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJORN TO CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

ATTEST

SECRETARY

SEAL

13503

Treasurer Garcia thanked Director Chavez for helping with the Covina
Valley-Optimist-golf-tournament.-which-raises funds-far youth sports
scholarships in the Covina, West Covina, Glendora, and La Puente
areqa. She emphasized the importance of community service,
supporting kids who might not otherwise afford sports, and expressed
grafitude that the event was successful in its fifth year.

President Santana congrotulated Evelyn Rodriguez for 18 years of
service and Jessica Hernandez for two years, expressing appreciation
for their contributions.

None.

MNone.

President Santana asked if there was any other business fo come
before the Board. There being none, the meeting was adjourned to a
regular meeting of the Board of Directors to be held on
NMovember 12, 2025, at 4:30 p.m.

PRESIDENT



Board of Direcions

Uppet San Gabrel Yalley Municipal Water District

November 12, 2025

General Fund
7.(b)
List of Demands

Submitted harewlth for oction by the Board of Direcion of the Uppar San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water Dishict ase the following demands on the Distict's General Fund Account

23140

23140

23142
23143
23144
23145

23148

23147

23148

3149
23150
23151
252

23153

23154

13155

23156

315

23158

05

23160
23161

2362

3163
Fxiln

789, Inc.

Aanon Read & Asocioles, LT

ACWA
ACWA
ATWALIPIA
AW FPIA

Abashira & Wyndar, [LP

Amaton Copilal Services

Bexst Beat & Kdwger, LLP

Los Angeles County Business Federation

CS0A
Cenler lor Financiol Bmpowsiment
Department of Waler & Power

Ecotech Services. Inc.

Faothill Municipal Water District

G, Green Gardens Group, LLC

Garden View, Inc.

Image Property Sanvices, LLC

Infodend, Inc.

Joay C. Soto

Jotin Rabinson Consulling, Inc
Just Lis 4 Youtlh

Eally Sarvices, inc.

Prama Direcl

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scotl

Spectrum Reach

{Previously poid 10/23/25)

I, UW-524201, Branding and Craative Services, November 2025
(Board approved T/0%/25)

Inw. 214280, State Leghlative Advocacy Service, September 2005

Inw. 214335, Slafe Laghlative Advococy Sevice, Dclober 2025
(Board approved 1/22/25)

v INVDIA3T ], ACWA Spring Confarence Hobel Fees

v, 2024, 2026 Annual Agency Duss

Inv. 1734, Auto and Genenal Liobilty, 1000125 - 10/01/248

I, OF 07244, Health Imurance Premium - November 2025

Legal Services, Seplembor 2025

I, $F833, Tronsoclional Fees

Iriv, 99834, Trarsaclional Fees

I, FRE35. Reloiner
(Board approved 04/13/22)

I ILHWV-HWFMN-393H, Meeling and Office Supplies, Sepl. - Och, 2025

Irvw, 1042740, Foderal Legisialive Advocacy Services through B/30425
{Board appraved 01/22/25) '

Irvw, 6515, 3026 Membaorshio Dues
I, 2024, Annwal Membaship Dues, 2024
frve, 114232500, Openotion Gobble Tukey Giveowdy Spansorhips
I, GAL40909, Recyclad Water Program Permit Fess. Novembar 2025
Irw. 3523, Leak Repair Kits lor WolerSman Home Program
Irw. 3527, Leak Repair Kits for WaterSman Home Program
{Board approved 06/08/22)
Inv. m&ujuﬂl: Consulting Services, October 2025 Cost-Share

Irvv. 1451, Reescaping Woskshop, Oclober 2025
(Board approved 06/ 12/24)

Inv. INV-0930125, Plan! Voucher Frogram

Irrv. 18495, Jaritorial Services. Seplember 2025
Irwe, 19388, Consumabies, Seplembar 2025

Inv. 297181, Waler Smar Home Kit Inserts

Inw. 2025U1D-GA-SEP-132. Grant Writing Services. Septamber 2025

{Board approved 04/08/22)

I, UW02301-21. As-needed Enaineering Support Services, Septemiser 2025

v, T2M0Q/25U0, Annual Open House & Toy Drive Sponsorship

Inw. 581 1270478, Temporary Services, Week Ending 09728725

v, 5481 1470057, Temporany Sendices, Week Ending 1070525

Irre. 5611545923, Temporary Services, Week Ending 10712425

I, 541 1485330, Temporary Services. Week Ending 10719425
{Board appraved 1011723}

v, M189118, District Logo Ihems

Ernw, TET42. Progress Billing for June 30, 2025 Audit Sendoes
(Board approved 0619/19)

Irw, 4000RR 185, Water Campalan Ads, Feb. - Mat, 2025
b, 440040123, Waler Campaign Ads. Mor- Aps. 2025
rvw. 4400401 24, Waler Campalan Ads, Mar. - Ape. 2025
i, 440044434, Waoter Campaian Ads, May - Jun, 2025
v, 440044435, Water Campaian Ads, May - Jun, 2025
Irre. SE0048306, Waoter Campaign Ads, Jul, - Aug, 2025
Inw, SA004B307. Waber Campaign Ads. Jul, - Aug, 2025
. BOOOSBBAT, Waler Campalan Ads, Apr. - May 2025
Inv. BOOOSEEAY. Waler Campaign Ads, Apr. - May 2025
Inw. BODOTASAT. Waler Compalan Ads, Seplember 2025
fnv. BODOFASEE. Water Campaian Ads, Seplember 2025
b, PO007 4374, Waler Campaign Ads, Jun, - Jul. 2025
b, RPOOOF 4375, Water Campalgn Ads, Jun. - Jul. 2025

Pags 1 af 2

10.000,00

1000000

1,495.50

4.713.00

7.574,10

¥.500.00

1.907.5%

42202

BIR.00
1. 104,00
B96,00

1. 104,00

2500004
2.500.04
1.500.00
1.4%0,00
2500004
1.491.20
250004
2500004
1.234.80
2.500.03
1487 .80
2500004

1,482.00

ERFDT]

575000

20.000,00

1623
24.485.00
&7, 78907

J298974

426820

35334
7.500.00

7.000.00
10,323.00
3,000.00

B3.33

15,078.10

2,500.00

1.950,00

24,993,473

L3940
B&2.00

LI2B.TS

2.440.00
1.000.00

A5 .00

415900
13,530.00

24.188.07



November 12, 7025

Ganeral Fund
166 Maton Engineerns. Inc. Irv, 2533-233, Genoral Engineorning Support Services, August 2005 3 F4487
Iy, 27 28-041, Integraled Resources Plan Updale, Augus! 2025 1. 120,39
I, 2533-234, General Enainesting Support Sefvices, Seplember 2025 29.583.51
Iy, 2728042, Integrated Resources Plon Updale, Seplembeer 2025 3.247.89 55.870.44
23167 Upper Distict Payroll Fund Irvv. Sep 25, Reimbursamant of Payroll and Payroll Taxes for Employess 160.228.50
I, Sep 250, Relmbursermant of Payrall Taxes for Dirmcion 10, 447,40 17047590
23168 U5 Bank Corporate Payment Systom CalCard Charges through 10/22025
rembarship/Ciher 147.91
Maeefings, Travel, Conferences 232329
Compuler Syslerms/Oifice Equipment/Supplies/Maintenance & Serdce/UliRes 40754
Corservation Program Expenses, Education and Outreach 1,940.05 481879
23148 WCA Inc. Inw, WC3-221040, 1T Manogement Service, September 2025 3,2B4.05
Inw, VCR213022, 1T Manogemen] Serdce, July 2025 4,543.20
I, VCI-217471, 1T Manogemen] Service, August 2025 4,713,485
I, WMIC 3224803, IT Moncgament Sendoe, Oclober 2025 127405
I, WCI-224807, Cradil Mamo, July 2025 [I.m.ﬂt 14,582 43
{Board approved 10/11/23)
23170 Wig Promationals, Inc, I, 23340, Dhsirict Logo hemd 1.4
N WaleRouse Association e, D4 1589, 2024 Annual Membenhip Dues 18,457.5%
W7 Upper Distict Revolving Fund Inv. Dt 25, Revolving Fund Accoun! Replenishmeni - October 2025
Offica Supphes 513,90
Compuler Systems/Equipment/Maintenance/imuronc &/ Oulide Sarvice TEW09
Directon's Quireach
Telephane/Utilikes/Bullding Mainfenoncea S017.03
meatingMravelConferences/Dues/ Assessments/Membarship 10.78
District Vehicle Expense
Workers Compensalion 2726.40
Water Corservalion Program Experdas 1.871.24
WRP Operalion & Mn1mumemhmmm:m Infe 73,152 57
Medical/O0A Reimbunement/Frocesing Fee/Ofhen 413017 95.251.40
23173 Jenniler Soniano Director's Compensation, September 2025
¥ Days Distict Business - 291400
Meating/Trave Emmwm; 284 87
Less Detarad Comp, ' [300.00)
Lets Taxes Withhedd 703.07) 197980
22174 Anihary Fellow Direcior's Compensalion, Oclober 2024
10 Days District Business 3.240.00
7. Days MWD Business : 2.248.00
S514.87
1500.00)
__11.63095) 289392
IMNTS Ed Chaver mclummmﬁubﬁ 2025
10 Days District Business 3,240.00
ravel Expenses/Allowance 516,87
Less ed Comp, | 500.00)
Lerss Tiameess Withheldl [1,398.98] 1,857.89
73176 Chares Treviio Bireciors Compemalion. Oclober 2025
9 Daoys District Business 291600
MesalinafTravel ExpensesfAllowance 170449
Less Daferred Comp. {500,007
Lew Taxes Withheld [1.089.93) G20.58
nmer Jenniter Santang Directo's Compansalion. Oclober 2025
&  Dharys District Business 1,544,000
Meating/Travel Experses/Allowance 51687
Less Delerred Comg, [ 500.00)
Less Taxas Withheld [472.05) 1,4B8.82
23178 Ralarna Gorcla Divector's Compargation, Oclober 2025
10 Diays Diskrict Business 3.240,00
Meeting/Travel Exeermes/Allowance 516.87
Less Defared Comp. [500.00)
Less Tenoes Williheldd [575.23) 2AH.

oL S 45694024

Paga2ol2



Boord of Directors
Uppar Son Gabial Valley Muricipal Water District

November 12,2025
Water Fund

Submitied harewith for action by the Board of Directors of the Upper 5an Gabriel Vasey Municipal Waler Disict are the following demands on the Disticts
Waler Fund Account of Cilizens Business Bank:

1342

1343

1344

1345

1346

1347

1348

Cenfrol Basin MWD

City of Industry City Hall
City of Industry City Hall
City af industry City Hall
City of Industry City Hall
metropoitan Woter Distact

San Gabrigl Voliey MWD

Suburban Waler System

Invoice Mo. USGVY-SEP2S, Purchase of 5.7 AF of Recyclad Water in August 2025
(Previously Paid 11/3/25)

Involce No. ROB312025-0. Purchase of 101.1AF of Recycled Water in August 2025
Invoice Mo, ROE312025-E. CIP Chorge for Augus! 2025

Invoice Mo, ROFI02025-0, Purchose of 76.1AF of Recycled Water in Seplamber 2025
Invoice No, ROF302025-E CIF Chorge for Seplember 2025

Invoice Mo, 11995, Purchase of 337.3 AF of Treated Water in September 2025

Invoice Mo, 581, 99,30 AF of Waler Delivered fhrough Ihe Alhambra/MWD
Exchange Agreamaent in Seplember 2025 @ $240 per AF

Invoice No, 805, Phase B Narmal Operofing Charge, Oclaber 2025

$ 4.302.40

42,462.00
14.176.70
31.962.00
11,251.70
444.282.79

25818.00

1.8689.81

TOTAL _§  578.145.40



7.(c-1)
Finanrial Renarts

Bu Bfu ooe's 3  980'8SE $  BDSWLS B3 SacUB|Bg pun4 U| sbueyn (210 ]
2/u Bju {000°261L) : sfefng Epden o ang yseD v afueyd 1aN
%0 N - sanuanay weibayg jepden
000t 000" £61 0o00° 261 B sainypuadis Epdes
EfU E/U 008 208 QH0 BEE B0 WIS T+/-] SUONEIAO0) WOJ} AR|oY SAasay] 19N
“JAIEM PRIESSUN [0 Y O0L'S PUE jBjEm pajead)
10 Y L0E' L passAED SBY JEIEAN saddn ‘uI0E Jequwades jo sy Yot 98 BE9'L05'95 00266859 Zi5' /628 BEL'960'L sanuasay Gunesedn
%692 FLE'959'95 00F'861'59 SEFBES B 05" 185" sasusdx3 Buessdy
‘JsjEm PSIESOUN J0 JY DOL'S PUE JETEM DEIER)

Jo 4¥ ADZ' | pRsan|ap SBY JalBAN Jaddn "UIOE Jagqusdag jo sy WL BE £92'6RL°05 O0E" LGS EEE 1ZL'D BSZ LGS SEFEYMNG JMBAL
slunowe paialipng uim Iuaisiswoo ase sasuadia LA Wb b L BES 09F 00Z'E29 Z09'951 BE5'LS wesbolg Aiddng pue Ajeng saIepn
SUNOWE palafipng Yl JUSISIEL0D AU sasusdxa (1A L leg'gzs’L DOO'LEZ'E BOL'00G £20'402 wesboug Buipdioayy Jaep
SjUNOWE pajabpng yw JUSSISU0D B sasusdys (14 BOGs PIROE O0E" Lt OzE'0L THr'E WwesBs IS EMLIOIS
siunoiue palabipng Ui WRISISUOD BIe SasuBdxa (LA el WL grr'0LE'L D09 108" L Z5L LEY CEB'6EL wifiod LeBAISELOD J3iEM

‘A paniooe papunjun 5121050 Jeddn o) palea
SHIIED 01 UDINGIIUED |ENUUE Jo juswded Spnioul sasusdxa Q1A Wl LL QBO'ZET'2 5 DOO'ZeR'Z % Ivom._mmm % +EL'85L % sasuady] aniB)SLILLDY
SIUBLLILLOTY DNINIYINTY ONINIVINTS 139ana ALVO-OL-MYIA HLNOW sasuadxy
13sang 13sana 9Z-520Z A4 AVNLIV A4 IVNLIY AL
40 1N3DIYH3d 40 LNNOWY

SZ0Z '0¢ ¥38W3Ld3S HO4 AYVYIWINNS TVIONVNIL
QMW ATTTIVA T13IHEVYO NYS H3ddn




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON
PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Page 1
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2025-26 BUDGET BUDGET
_ MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
| ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING REVENUES | 75% @ 09-30-25
Water Rate Revenues
Tier 1 Treated 9127 1,632,153 4,369,300 2, 737147 B3%
Tier 1 Untreated 3,726,704 3,836,354 47,424,000 43,587 646 92%
Upper Surcharge Tier 1 Treated 36,811 B2.493 308,000 226,507 73%
Upper Surcharge Tier 1 Untreated 1,348,296 1,380,896 5,356,000 3,965,104 T4%
MWD Capacity Charge Revenue - 90,675 394,000 303,325 7%
Gross MWD Standby Charge-Revenue Reconciliation 496,593 496,593 1,850,000 1,453 407 T5%
MSGB Watermaster-Ready-to-Serve 6,300 18,900 75,600 56,700 75%
Sub Total 6,605,831 7,548,064 59,877,900 52,329 B36 BT%
Revolving Revenue
MSGB Watermaster-SG River Watermaster 123,500 123,500 106,500 {17,000) -16%
Sub Total 123,500 123,500 106,500 (17,000) ~16%
Other Administrative Revenues
Interest/investment Earnings 15,340 117,358 150,000 32642 22%
Taxes . 212,187 B22,000 609,813 T4%
Other Income (Loss) 3,065 7973 31,800 23,827 75%
Sub Total 18,405 337,518 1,003,800 666,282 BE%
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE REVENUES 6,747,736 8,009,082 60,988,200 52,979,118 B7%
I CAPITAL PROJECT FUND REVENUES |
8 Revenues
Recycled Water Sales 74,339 151,979 573,000 421,021 T3%
Upper Recycled Water Surcharge Revenue 223,980 486,571 1,276,000 789,429 62%
Metropolitan Water District LRF Funds 13,126 30,831 120,000 89,169 74%
Parcel/Standby Charge - 33,135 2,050,000 2,016 885 88%
Interest/investment Earnings 1,169 8,726 13,000 4274 33%
Sub Total 32,614 711,242 4,032,000 3,320,758 B2%
Water Conservation Revenues
Conservation Program Contributions 34,809 168,151 322,500 154,349 A8%
Sub Total 34,809 168,151 322,500 154,349 48%
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND REVENUES 347,423 879,393 4,354,500 3475107 80%
| OTHER FUND REVENUES |
Water Quality and Supply Program Revenuas
Interestinvestment Eamings - 1,735 50,000 48,265 7%
Sub Total - 1,735 50,000 48,265 a7%
Rate Stabilization Fund Revenues
Interestinvestment Eamings 999 7.362 6,500 (862) -13%
Sub Total 299 7,362 6,500 (862) -13%
TOTAL OTHER FUND REVENUES 999 9.087 56,500 47,403 B4%
TOTAL REVENUES 7,096,158 8,897,572 65,399,200 56,501,628 BE%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON
PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Fage 2
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL F¥ ACTUAL FY 2025-26 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
| ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES | ¥5% @ 09-30-25
Personnel Expenses
Employes Salanas 131,977 414,615 1,637,000 1,222,385 75%
Employee Benalits 29,288 85,338 388,500 304,162 TB%
Relired Empioyee Bensfils 9,345 2380 122,100 98,269 B%
Emgployae Travel/Conferance 2,848 B.160 60000 51,840 BE%
Sub Total 173,458 531,944 2,208,800 1,676,656 T6%
Director Expenses
Directar Compansation 18,019 59,009 216,000 156.961 T3%
Director Benefits 18,308 46,4894 181,000 134,506 T4%
Retired Director Benefits B.2T1 8,345 28,400 19,055 BT %
Director Public Outreach 20632 8,061 25,000 15.939 G4
Director Travel/Conference 2,756 10,206 60,000 48,094 B2%
Sub Total 47,087 134,845 510,400 375,555 Ta%
Pansi PEB E
CalPERS-Employees, Directors, Retirees 14,454 103,136 359,000 255,864 7%
Sub Total 14,454 103,136 359,000 255,864 T1%
|0 i, 300)
Office Expenses
Office Supplies/Equipment 2,801 13,280 45,000 31,720 0%
Eguipment Operations & Mainlenance 508 1,789 22,000 20,211 2%
Computer Systems 222 13,473 63,000 49,527 Ta%
Dues and Agsesaments - 84,354 86,600 2,246 3%
Meeling Expansa 1,318 4,356 37.000 32 644 BE%
Sub Total 4,850 117,252 253,600 136,348 54%
Facility Expenses

Building Maintenance 3807 10917 64,000 53.083 B3%
Liability/Property insurance 2,381 16,611 82,200 65,589 BO%
Tetephone/Utilitles 4,337 12.727 56,000 43.273 %
Sub Total 10,325 40,255 202,200 161,945 BO%

Professional Services
Legal/Financia 5,038 15,048 110,000 94,952 BE%
Engineering 8,850 27,932 145,000 117.068 Bi%
Auditor - - 32,300 32,300 100%
Ouiside Services 2215 15,409 55,000 38,591 2%
Public Infarmation/Outreach - 432 1,700 1,268 T5%
Sub Total 16,103 58,821 344,000 285,178 B3%

[#] xpen
Eleclion Costs - . 322,000 322.000 100%
Sub Total - - 322,000 322,000 100%
i i o ra
Salaries/Overhead Allocaled to Projects {108.383) (326,949} (1,307,800) [980,851) 75%
Sub Total (108,383) [326,949) {1,307,800) (280,851) 75%
TOTAL 158,194 659,304 2,692,000 2,232,696 TT%
Water Purchases

Tier 1 Treated Tar.106 1,378,131 4,369,300 2,991,169 BE%
Tiar 1 Untreatad 3,726,704 3,835,354 47,424,000 43,587 646 9%
MWD Capacity Charge 105,300 105,300 394,000 288,700 T¥%
MWD Ready-to-Serve Charge 1,278,648 1.278.648 5.217.500 3.938,852 75%
Sub Total 5,847,758 6,508,433 57,404,800 50,806,367 BO%
San Gabriel River Watermaster 123,500 123.500 106,500 {17,000} -16%
Sub Total 123,500 123,500 108,500 (17,000) -16%
TOTAL 5,971,258 6,721,933 57,511,300 50,789,367 Ba%
TOTAL ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES 5,120,452 7,361,237 60,403,300 53,022,063 BE%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON

PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Fage 3
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2025-26 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING RE!IMNIHG
I RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EAPENSES 1 9% @ 09-30-25
Water Purchases-Recycled Waler 103,510 133,063 573,000 439,937 %
SWRCH Loan Rapayment - 101,499 791,000 689,501 B7%
Salaries and Owerhead Allocation 6,642 19,926 79,700 59,774 5%
Standby Charge Development/implemantation 3.633 3,633 18,700 15,067 B1%
Engineering - General 3,300 9,240 40,000 30,760 7%
Lobbyist 7.500 22,500 95,000 72,500 T6%
Lagal and Financial - - 3,000 3,000 100%
Public Information - 2,406 5,000 2,504 52%
DOperation and Maintenanca Phase 1A 33,745 125,581 421,300 285,719 T0%
Cperation and Maintenance Phasa IIB 48,693 82.321 200,300 117,979 59%
Sub Total 207.023 500,169 2,227,000 1,726,831 TB%
TOTAL RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES 207,023 500,169 2,227,000 1,726,831 T8%
™ CAPITAL PROGRAM EXPENSE
San Gabriel Valley Water Recycling Project
Direct Reuse Program 100,000 100,000 100%
Legal and Financial 2,000 2,000 100%
Sub Total B - 102,000 102,000 100%
Other Capital Program Expenses
USE Connections - 895,000 85,000 100%
Sub Total - - 95,000 85,000 100%
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAM EXPENSES - - 197,000 197,000 100%:
[ STORMWATER PROGRAM EXPENSES |
Stormwater Program
Salaries and Overhead Allocation 3,442 10,326 41,300 30,974 75%
Sub Total 3,442 10,326 41,300 30,974 7T5%
TOTAL STORMWATER EXPENSES 3442 10,326 41,300 30,974 T5%




UPPER S5AN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON
PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Paged
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2025-26 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE  BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
WATER CONSERVATION 75% @ 09-30-25
PROGRAM EXPENSES
WATER USE EFFICIENCY
Residantial Programs
Member Agency Administered Programs 56,336 97.148 167,500 70,352 42%
Regicnal Rebate Program 6,540 14.558 50.000 35,442 %
Sub Total 62,876 111,706 217,500 105,794 49%
mim L lalil n Pr
Member Agency Administered Programs 35,338 105,000 69,662 66%
Regional Rebate Program - 5,000 = 15,000} 0%
Sub Tolal E 40,338 105,000 64,662 B2%
Il on to Cons on Programs
Salaries & Qverhaad 18,625 58,875 235,500 176,625 T5%
Sub Total 18,625 58,875 235,500 176,625 T5%
TOTAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY EXPENSES 82,501 210,919 558,000 347,081 B2%
EDUCATION & COMMUNITY OUTREACH
atarsh
Natural Vegatation Restoration Program . B.500 20,000 11,500 58%
Sub Total - 8,500 20,000 11,500 58%
Educational P
Educalional Activilies 341 7.8z 60,000 52,218 B7%
Meamberships 11,500 11,836 145,000 133,164 82%
Educational Materials/Grant Program - {1.126) 60,000 61.126 102%
Educational Dutreach Programs/Events 185 5,018 160,000 154,881 B7%
Sub Total 12,026 23,511 425,000 401,485 B84%
| Progr
Public Wearkshops/Seminars 1.950 6,053 40,000 33,947 B5%
Conservabion Devices/ltems 24,167 27,193 45,000 17.807 40%
Baoliled Water Program 3339 3,330 15,500 12,181 TB%
Community/industry Sponsorships 5.500 10,300 35,000 24,700 1%
Displays/Fairs/Presantations 447 1,724 5,000 3,276 B6%
Conferences/Meetings 69 487 12,000 11.503 O6%
Public Information a4 20,807 100,000 79,083 TO%
Technical Assistance 12,009 36,336 70,000 33,664 48%
Legal/Financial 148 348 10,000 8.852 9%
Sub Total 48,233 106,697 332,500 225,803 68%
Salaries & Overhead 47175 141.525 566,100 424,575 5%
Sub Total 47,175 141,525 566,100 424,575 75%
TOTAL EDUCATION & COMMUNITY OUTREACH
EXPENSES 107,434 280,233 1,343,600 1,063,367 T0%
TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENSES 189,935 491,152 1,901,600 1,410,448 T4%
WATER QUALITY AND SUPPLY PROGRA XPEMN
Policy 9-00-8 G P
Engineering for Water Supply Projects 8,581 16,501 73,000 56,489 %
Legislative Consultant - 20,000 125,000 105,000 Ba%
Dutside Services 2.500 7.500 - [7.500) 0%
Sub Total 11,081 44,001 198,000 153,999 T8%
Other Expenses
Urban Water Management Plan/Related Studies - 278 20,000 19,722 29%
Integrated Resources Plan 8,344 15,268 10,000 (5,268) -53%
Water Supply Reliability Plan/Emergency Preparedness = * 5,000 5,000 100%
Legal and Financial 73 755 5,000 4,245 B5%
Salaries and Ovarhead Allecation 32100 95.300 385,200 288.900 75%
Sub Total 40,517 112,601 425,200 312,593 T4%
TOTAL WATER QUALITY AND SUPPLY EXPENSES 51,508 156,602 623,200 4656,5098 T5%
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,581,450 8,539,486 65,393,400 56,853,014 BT%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
September 30, 2025

Page b
D E E NCE
Amount (5)
Cash Account Balances
Ganeral Fund-Checking § 521,615.57
Water Fund-Checking 472,258.45
Revolving Fund 96,315.82
Revolving Payroll Fund 169,168.63
Total Cash Account Balances ] 1,259,358.47
Investment Account Balance Market Value Cost/Book Value
Local Agency Investment Fund £ 9.732.017.26 $ 9,732,017.26
Other Investmeants 5713,834.91 5.627.795.79
Total Investment Account Balances 5 15.445.85217 $ 15,359,813.05
Total Cash and Investment Balances § 16,705,210.64
I DISTRICT FUND BALANCES ]
Capital Program Fund:
Walter Recycling Program s 937,895.00
Conservation and Education Program 147,228.00
Water Quality and Supply Program 185,642.00
Sub Total 1,270,765.00
Rate Stabilization Fund 712,182.00
General Fund (Operations and Administration) 14.722,263.64
Total Fund Balances § 16.705210.64

MANAGEMENT STATEMENT: It is the opinion of management that all fund balances are in compliance with all applicable
statutes and the current investment policy of the District. It is also the opinion of management that projected cash flow
liquidity is adeguate to meet the next six months of expected obligations of the District.

DISTRIC RESERVE FUND BALANCES

Conservation and

Water Recycling Education Program

Program 19
6%
Water Quality and
Supply Program
1%

Rate Stabilization

4%
General (Operations
and Administration)
BB%
® Water Recycling Program ® Conservation and Education Program
® Water Quality and Supply Program H Rate Stabilization

B General (Operations and Administration)




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
~September 30, 2025
Page 5

[ CASH AND TNVESTWENT BALANCES ]

Amount ($)
Cash Account Balances
General Fund-Checking § 521,615.57
Water Fund-Checking 472 258.45
Revolving Fund 96,315.82
Revolving Payroll Fund 168,168.63
Total Cash Account Balances 5 1.259.358.47
Investment Account Balances Market Value Cost/Book Value
Local Agency Investment Fund § 9,732017.26 $ 8.732,017.26
Other Investments 5.713,834.91 5.627,795.79
Total Investment Account Balances $ 1544585217 5 15,359,813.05
Total Cash and Investment Balances $ 16,705.210.64
DISTRICT FUND BALANCES |
Capital Program Fund:
Water Recycling Program 1 937,895.00
Conservation and Education Program 147 .228.00
Water Quality and Supply Program 185,642.00
Sub Total 1,270,765.00
Rate Stabilization Fund 712,182.00
General Fund (Operations and Administration) 14,722 .263.64
Total Fund Balances § 16,705,210.64

MANAGEMENT STATEMENT: It is the opinion of management that all fund balances are in compliance with all applicable
statutes and the current investment policy of the District. It is also the opinion of management that projected cash flow
liguidity is adequate to meet the next six months of expected obligations of the District.

DISTRIC RESERVE FUND BALANCES

Conservation and

Water Recycling Education Program
Program 194

6%
Water Quality and

Supply Program
1%

Rate Stabilization

4%
General (Operations
and Administration)
88%
B Water Recycling Program B Conservation and Education Program
m Water Quality and Supply Program H Rate Stabilization

B General (Operations and Administration)




7. (e-2)
Financial Reoorts

RS £, FOOI Bivck, 30y 200 P 626-443-2297 ’ £ Infodusgvmwd,org
Board of Direciors | ihony B. Fellow, Charles M. Travifio Ed Chaver Katarina Garcla Jenniter Santana
URPER LAN GABBEL VLAY Ph.D. Divlsion | Diviskon 2 Division J Ditwision 4 DivElon §
MURICP AL WATER DETRICT

DATE: October 31, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: District Treasurer Katarina Garcia

SUBJECT: Quarterly Report Regarding District Investments

The Board of Directors of the Upper San Gabnel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper Water) has adopted a policy
regarding the investment of district funds. The policy established specific guidelines for district investment activity,
delegated investment responsibility and authority to the General Manager and set forth requirements for the Treasurer of
the Board to oversee all Upper Water investment transactions and make regular reports to the Board regarding district
investments. This letter is the Treasurer's Report of Upper Water investment activity for the quarter ended September 30,
2025.

As of September 30, 2025, Upper Water had $9,732.017.26 invested in the State of California’s Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF), which eamed 4.34% during the quarter.

Upper Water investments managed by Chandler Asset Management has a total market value of $5,713.834.90 and an
average market yield of 3.84% as of September 30, 2025. Details are as follows:

To the best of my knowledge, as Treasurer of the Upper Water, this report is an accurate representation of district
investments and these investments comply with Upper Water's investment policy and applicable statutes. Detailed

Security Type Cost/Book Value Market Value

ABS b 303,722.66 § 304,222.24
Agency 1.531,643.11 1,559,725.35
Agency CMBS 300,019.53 300,730.63
Money Market Fund 16.370.48 16,370.48
U.S. Corporate 907,696.50 915,455.92
U5, Treasury 2.4009,500.40 2455,294.19
Supranational 154,743.70 157,936.68
Cash 4,099.41 4,009.41
Totals 5 5.627,795.79 3 5,713,834.90

information regarding all Upper Water investments is attached with this memorandum for your review,

/I Attachments

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT



1¥31/25, 213 PM LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

California State Treasurer

Local Agency Investment Fund October 31, 2025

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

(916) 653-3001 PMIA Average Monthly.
Yields

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL

WATER DISTRICT

GENERAL MANAGER

248 E. FOOTHILL BLVD, SUITE 200
MONROVIA, CA 91016

iti
Account Number: 90-19-021

September 2025 Statement

Web

Effective Transaction TI'aI: Confirm Confirm
Date Date Yp Number Number Authorized Caller Amount

O/8/2025 9/5/2025 RD 1782170 N/A EVELYN RODRIGUEZ 5,300,000,00
9972025  9/9/2025 RD 1782249 N/A EVELYN RODRIGUEZ 700.000,00
0/29/2025 9/24/2025 RW 1782854 N/A EVELYN RODRIGUEZ -1,800,000.00
Account Summary

Total Deposit: 6,000,000.00 Beginning Balance: 5,532,017.26
Total Withdrawal: -1,800,000.00 Ending Balance: 9,732,017.26

hittps:Maifms. treasurer.ca.goviRegularStatement.aspx



PMIA/LAIF Performance Report

as of 10/22/25
Quarterly Performance PMIA Average Monthly
Quarter Ended 9/30/25 Effective Yields'"

LAIF Apportionment Rate': 4.34 September 4.212
LAIF Earnings Ratio”:  0.00011893333163814 August  4.251
LAIF Administrative Cost™™ :  0.26 July 4.358
LAIF Fair Value Factor:  1.001929581 June  4.269
PMIA Daily™: 419 May  4.272
PMIA Quarter to Date';  4.24 April 4281

PMIA Average Life™: 254

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition 1t

9/30/25
$161.7 billion
Corporate
Commarcial Bonds
Paper 0.58%
Time 5.80%
Deposits
3.25%

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes
0.74%
Treasuries
51.39%
Agencias
29.08%

Chart does nat include 5987,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Dally rates are now available here. View PMIA Dally Rates

Notes: The apportinnment rate includes interest earmed on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Peyment purstant to Government Code 20825
fcla).

*The percentoge of odministrative cost equals the totol odministrative cost divided by the guarterly interest eamings, The low provides that
edministrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS af the fund. However, if the 13-week Dally Treaswry Bill Rate an the last day of
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative casts shall nof exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year.

Source:
Vi Sate of California, Office of the Treasurer
W State of California, Office of the Controller



STy, State of California

o i
=
) % Pooled Money Investment Account
=2 =
= -= -
B A& Market Valuation
. e
e 9/30/2025
Carrying Cost Plus
Description Accrued Interest Purch. Amortized Cost Fair Value Accrued Int
United States Treasury.
Bills 5 39599,745147.02 | $ 3997347190190 |§  39,985,802,450.00 MA
Notes $ 43,494,437,239.54 | $ 43477478.89529 | § 43,720,178,000.00 | § 396,089,
Federal Agency:
SBA ] 262,881.87042 | $ 262,768,178.80 [ % 260,243,125.97 | § 1,048,
MBS-REMICs 5 986,577.07 | $ 986,577.07 | $ 096,338.26 | § 4,
Debentures 5 5,820,766,716.29 | § 5,820,766,716.29 | § 5,837,507,030.00 | § 42,941,
Debentures FR S - 1% - |3 - $
Debentures CL $ 3,150,000,000.00 | $ 3,150,000,000.00 | § 3,162,895,050.00 | § 39,9186,
Discount Notes 5 3404505720842 | §  34430,751,569.55 | § 34,435 696,650,000 NA
Supranational Debentures 3 3,735,297,997.63 | & 3,734,83862261 | § 3,752,739,63000 | & 27,482,
Supranational Debentures FR | $ - |9 - 13 - $
CDs and YCDs FR $ - $ - 5 - $
Bank Notes 5 200,000,000.00 | % 200,000,000.00 [ % 199,956,589.25 | § 1,148,
CDs and YCDs 5 15,550,000,000.00 [ $  15,550,000,000.00 | % 15,5653,645,102.15 [ $ 198,281,
Commercial Paper $ 9,375,972,04162 | $ 9,473,396,736.20 | § 9,476,638,541.63 NA,
Corporate:;
Bonds FR $ - |8 - 5 - 5
Bonds $ 943,615,108.85 | 5 943,498,546.35 | % 945,273,378.00 | % 9,127,
Repurchase Agreements $ - |8 - 13 - $
Reverse Repurchase $ - |% - |8 - $
Time Deposits $ 5,249,000,000.00 | $ 5,249,000,000.00 | 5 5,249,000,000.00 NA
PMIA & GF Loans $ 262,742,740.00 | § 26274274000 | & 262,742,740.00 MNA
TOTAL 5 161,690,502,64686 | § 162529,7004B4.06 | § 162 B4331462526 |% 716,041,
Fair Value Including Accrued Interest & 163,559,355,755.38

Repurchase Agreements, Time Deposits, PMIA & General Fund loans, and
Reverse Repurchase agreements are carried at portfolio book value (carrying cost).

The value of each participating dollar equals the fair value divided by the amortized cost (1.001929581)
As an example: if an agency has an account balance of $20,000,000.00, then the agency would report its



‘anjes ¥ooq uaung 1g pajussaidal aie sabebuoly “e1ep abueys uodnos je pejuasaidsl aue sanunoag aley Buneol4 vgs 1
‘SUBD| pun4 |BJSUSS) PUB (N4 @pniaul jou op selo] "Bulpuncs o) anp o aq Aew sabejusdiad "uo|||iu 1Seleau ay) o} papunol aue saunbi4y i

%00°00L  |%8L'L6 [%99'S6 %8968 [%W60'6L [WZEWL [%0OZTL [%8L69  [%LZTPY  [%L9LS  |%SEI  [%S96Z  |%O0SLL | % GAnEjnwng
%ZTT WZL'Z  |%l66  |%6S0F |%LLP  |BELT  |WEVE  |%ISS  |%BSZh %906  |%O06ZF |%SLTE |%0GLL  [Weded
%.00°00L | EOV'E9LS |G20'C S| OLV'E €916 §|6OE'LLS |68L'L $|S¥E §$[GS6'E $[.60'6 §|0BS0Z §[sog'vl §|8L0'1Z §|658'6L §|86S'BT § [TVIOL
0070 -1 H svg
%00°0 = 8 GEET
%850 BY6  § 5L $[ost s|ezz s|est s|eEl s|sz  $|soL  $ GRS &z 8 3 §| anaduod
%bZE BYZS § Iy9  §(G9€ S|S0zt S|eozt S|ees §|E0T & salL
%8S DsS'e § ool $|osy &[oor S[ose’t S|oo6 S|oost s|ossL sfooge $ dd
3’6 pSL'sE $ 0ok £ | 008 S | 002 $|o0g's S|OSL'E S|O0D0E S |056 s|oove S|O00FE S |0SEY 3 SNE + 50D
%bv'6Z |DS0BY $|00GZ 5 |0.G 5|OviZ S|0SvL S|0GvL $|0SZ $|002Z §|099C §|0588 §|0SEy §|05€y S|ed8L S|eils AONIOV
%lE'LS | PS8'Es §|0S0'L  §|0SL'L S| 00vL S|009GES[00LS S|o06z $| - S[0sZv S[00D0B S|00VZ S|006'LL S|00VL S|D0S0L S| AMNSVIML
(imoLjo wnopeak g | siwakp | siwek g | suwedz | swak ) | sAep osz | shep oiz | sfep 081 | sAep os) | sAep oz | sAepos | sAepos | sAepoc LE
%) 1B19M | | (30, o o a | o o) o o ) o kil el S " bl e
i swoky | suwakg | siwokz | seek | | skep 1sz| shep yi1z | skep igi | sAep 15| | shep \zi | shep 16 | shep g | shep g | Aup )
,SdejjoQ Jo suolj|iy ul sapunjel
3dAL ANV 31Vad A9 ONIENLYIN SINTVA dvd
mauary,
S
SZ0Z-0¢- mH jo se oljojpiod 5 .m
junoaoy juawsasu] fauo pajood % %
gz ¥




WBIpOIST payijenb ol wosg auaial nod 3w gl 03 Juswaiels sy areduwesd o3 nod SEin S [ ELUSPYLOD §) UL PRUIRI0D UORWLO L

Jlea) Jajpuey’)

wioo1asselajpueyd | INJWIOVNYIW LISSY HITANYHD

GZ0Z ‘0 Joquw=1das Jo Sy | TZOT#H IUN0JDY | 30143510 4218 [edIUNA AS)|eA [a1IgeD ues Jaddn

IN3JNILVLS INNOJJV ATHLNOW

u31aNvE>S VD)




£ | WiLNIgHNDS CREPLTE Q08 | WorIasseia|pueY MMM | Wod 1asseIa|pURLRE DU | JuBwaleurly 1955y Sa|pUeLY) Wd TZ:50:60 SZ02/T0/0T 3w | uoyndaxy

NApU) AINSEAUL S JEDE £10 WIOE 3D RwLuag
'PRIBNULE S4B JEAR T JAAD SPOLAY, .
‘Y4 PuB SAPOOW ‘RS 10 1Saydy ay) 1o vogenoges adesase patyFam e s Apenb ypaso adesane ay ),

%OLT | %81 %861 %05'¢ %0T'5 %H0'Y BELE KETT %EED  wmiy pewyuag
%BLT | %EG'T %0 %55t %178 WLB'E YLOE %I0T %TED aMNA 121geS ues jaddpn
{v1/10/30)

uopdasu) aauisg SHADT SHAS SHAE «=lLIN13Y O 3Ey (e10)

Malnay aduellloisd

WOVLW N WEYLLYY .. WIEPT VWY .

&, & & <
A o - o sion ysey
- NETD P4 1w Aauow
wier @ sesdng
WEPT ®I'PT %1'ST sers H sawd fualy
0BT
5T woes I sav
ssoor EEEE  sesodio)
wre N Aouady
WO'RE
wosze (N Anseail S0
%05
LAEND Npal) uonngusig AJuniew uopelo||y Joag
6LSBL LTS TLLED'ETS'S anjep 1500 51T ayr) aBesany
o8 OTF'VED'S 65 6EE'ET9'S anjen, Joog 99'T AyLmEpy [Buly a3eiany
RELT | jueg wawdniaaag uellaLy-1au) BB B9Y'ETS'S 06°FLT ¥TI'S g e
I £ r A 4 I 1
%2l T 1511 33UBNsE| pIEY 4 000 oo  Gmjwng W i .
%L T | 1511 Sajqenaday any Iuag-tapalapy BUISTET P Ere'al paUIES S0 SrEE WLLA 1Ry adesany
%eLT . 1SNJ] Jasey Bpaldy mnwumsm UEIfairy TETER'ETLS S OEE"9E9'S SNTA IR [R10L
-— WITY IALLA Bseyng adeiany
%6T'S ] JWHA BO'LEE'DS 0FELT LY JsasEiL| panIy
oT'g SHURH UBDT SLUOH |BJapa4 £RIERTANS Sa0ST'HYS'S FNIEA TR IV uodnod adesany
%ITTZ | Washs 1Ipa) wuey
! A 5z0Z/0E/60 ST0Z/TE/B0 r
%06 T $31EI5 paliun JO S San|e pul JO 5B San|Es, pui LF'T uonming payipow afeiany
s1anss| do] Aewwing unody SILSUBIIRIBYD) 01|0pI0g

S207 ‘0F J8quialdas Jo Sy | $TZOT#H IUN020Y | 1313510 J21ep [ediiuniy Asjjep [auqen ues Jaddn

AMFEAY MY L355Y
zm._nz.q_._udﬂc AYVININNS 011041804




E | IVILNIQINGD LRI LTE DD | WOT 195Sela|puByY Mmsm | Wodlasseiajpueypa@ou) | uswafeuryy 1855y Jajpuel) Wd TTS0E0 S702/20/0T 2w Uoyniaxy

e duo 1 5 {sipay) Apumey ey

ey dwod g1 oot (AW aanss) g5 xepy

ey duwo 8z 00 (AN % Xew

SNOILYDIME0 TYNOILYNYHANS

lueydwo] oo oo (MW 3104 < #4304 Ag T4) Funey vy

weydwoy oo 1 [simag) Arumepy xEp

Jueydwo) 00 008 (AW) % xew

(02N LISOd3a 40 S3LVII41183D 319VILOD3IN

ueydwog oo 0o (7 A wyy) Buney upy

eqdwo) £0 002 ~ (AW) Janss) 9% xew

weydwo) £ 00z C AW e xei

[ SAONN4 TYNLOW LINEYIN AINOW
ueydwo? oo 000t (A %6 xey

_ (d197) 100d INIWLSIANI LNIWNYIAOS IVI01
wepdway 00 0'se (AW UopEUAIUD XE

(4177) anNNd INFNLSTIANIT ADNIDY TY20T

ejdwod z [ (sseap) Ayuniely xe

lueduwiog E'LZ 009 (AN 56 e

| S3IINIDY TVYHIA3L
uedwo; oo 1 (s1E3p) Apunely xely

faL

[0 3719vILODIN-NON) SLISO430 IWIL aIdnsNI 2104

wendwo] oo 00 (s183 7 < J1 W [sieap 7 > )1 T AQ ) Buey vl

uendwos £ 5 [sseay) Aumegy xew

wenjdwo) 11 05 (AW Janss| % xew

wweydwo) o091 0'0E (AW) % xew

“ SILON WHIL WNIJIW 3LVHOdHOD
wedwo) oo 0'0 (uwir) 3104 < § Y2114 Ag 14) Suaey uiy

weydiwoy 0o 01 - (ssmap) Ayumepy xep

{ar/as

118YILODIN-NON) SLISO430 INIL Q3ZNYEILYTI0D

ue(dwog 0n 00 (3w 2104 < 3 Yoy Ag T4) Fugey uiy

e dwoy oo o1 . {srean) Auniepy xepw

SL150430 ¥NYE O3ZITYHILYI10D

sMIENs
ajueijdwal

sa10N

FLEN S|NY

5707 ‘0F Jaquialdas Jo sy | $TZ0TH UNo1y | 1uisig 1a1ep jediiuniy) Asjjen [auqes ues Jjaddn

LNFWIDYNYIL L1355V
HITANVYHO ‘G JINVITdINOD 40 LNINILVLS




| IVILMIAIENGD

(i ETEDDR | WO Iassela|pueyammam | Wod jasserafpueya@ojul | uswadeuey 1955y Jajpuey’)

ueydwon tr g
Jueydwon 6'It 0001
jue)diing o0 0o

s30N ih

asuedwosy

Wd TE'S0'ED STOZ/T0/0T aun) vounaaxy

[saway) Aquniepy xepy
(AWD 2 xEN
SIIHNSWIHL SN

(T Ag -vy) Buney uiw

awep sany

INFNIDYINYIN 1355V

HITTANVHDO

w

SZ0T ‘0F J2quwandas Jo Sy | pT7OTH UNoY | 19u3siqg Jajep (ediuniy Aajlen [Puges ues Jaddn

AINVITdINOD 40 LNIWILVYLS



& | IWILNIOIANGD P ETE QDR | WO I2SSEIa|PUBL Y MMM | LD 1BssERa|puByD @oju)| | wswadeuepy 1855y JFPUEY) Wd T7:50:E0 8T07/20/0T -aun | ubinIay

mw.nmm‘wmm‘m E8'LER'ZO9'S anjen 1eiew Bupul (£0°s00'8) ajeq o) Jeay |easy
000 | bo'o {sso) uieg pazeay (o so0's) a1eq 01 yiuow
BV'EGHE 1 (0T°004°T) {ss0) ureny pazieaiun) 18N u aduey 15a1a1U| _u__.umh__, paseyaund
95'900°] 69'STT OB/ UONEZLIOUY
(9'96v | (6v'v89'E) sapqenasay ‘sajqeAed ‘ysed u) afueyy
*Nw.w.mmwm.am‘: n..”___m......wm.mm_m,ﬂ — S9'vr9'09 318 01 JED4 |EI5H
PTSIEDSET {EERE'TRO'T saseyaIng 8T'ETT'LT Q01 Hivow
000 . oo'o susmopied [edauig panladay 1salalu)
(00000/067) (00'000'59) silea/senumen
617SL'609' 59°0ST'6K9'S anjep 1y BuuuiBag o
(5202/10/20) o bk e lap Vel
|ajeg o) Jwa) |easiy ﬂ-ﬂ.hﬂ.ﬁ.ﬁﬂﬂ}—_ 2180 01 Yo
Aewiwuns ANALDY 1ay1ey Jieq sajesg
vT'STEDSE'T a1eQ 01 JEB (B354
mm.mmﬁrmm,m 98 '9TH'vEY'S an|es yoog Jupul LB E6R'TEO'T a1eQ 01 YILOW
0o'o , oo'o (s50) ulen ﬂw.n_"mmc. saseyaung
95'900'T 69'SIT UOLBIIY/UOHETLIOWY
(996 | (5rv89'e) sajgesaday ‘sajgedeg ‘yse) uy aduey]
(z€°'9891609'T) (DB LbE'809°T) sa|es 00’0 21eQ 01 JEI}, (8IS
bT'STEDSE'T LE'E6R'TE9'T saseyung 000 21eq 01 Iuo
000 | 00’0 sumophed |ediaud sumopAed |ediuiig
Eﬂ.dccm_n_mn. {00 000'59) 5[E,/SAUMIER
E.qmm,wmm.m 65'6EE'BTO'S anjep, yoog Jujuuidag
(szoz/f10/L0) S 0 iy {oo'ooo‘o6z) ajeq o) Jeay, [Bsiy
aleq o) Jeay, (easy loorooo’sa) 2iEQ 1 e
Adewnung Aanoy [eniaay sjieD [/ sanunmiepy

5707 ‘0F Jaquiandas Jo sy | $TZ0T#H WN0DY | 13u3siqg J91ep0 [eduniy Aajiep [2LIges ues Jaddn

INWADYN VI 1355V
EWI—ﬂZdIU“‘U AYYWINNS NOILYITIDONOD3Y



] _ IWLLNITANGS iy LTEDOR _ LD 1SS0 | PUBLT MMAY _ _._._.O.u.u....-ﬂm._.uum_mu:n_u.m“-nn.._“_ﬂ._:_ _ PEWENNMEME 1255y J2|puey’) Wd TT'S0ED MN_“UH.‘_.N._H___.H__M cal ) UGn>an]

10T WY TZTELT 09°208'T %OLE  PTOEE'BOT %69y - 9z0Z/L1/TT 529t
£T'T WYTEY %8 SE'T90'901 107T0T  STPIS'POT ezogfor/ry  C000OSOT SINVE NVOT INOH 43034 e
680 | WY EZGRO0T bO'9LE %69E  ILVOB'YE 66T ST 9202/10/60 5¢'b dHOD ONIONNA
260 WV/TEY 69T 56'€68'S6 PEOOT  0OT6E'P6 gzor/ezjor 000006 SNV 11034 WHY4 143034 FANIEETE
080 | WY ESEROT T Lv8 %ILE  L6'DB6'6E %10'S = 920Z/0E/£0 0°S d¥OI INIGNNA
£8°0 wy/Tey %L 05°5€0'T0T POTOT  00'0L6'66 gzozfog/or  O000000T  SANVE 110340 WA Tv43034 RAZdAREIE
(90 | WY 0LO0SY gEVEL'T %ELE  SBZLT06 %Sy o "~ gzoz/Tr/ensLv
00 wv/Tey %09 95'€29'06 69°00T  0002£'06 ezozfer/co 00008 SANVE NVOT INOH T¥¥3034 HEMVOETE
150 WY EE'SS 00°0SL'T %9%E 9L 18866 %66E TR 920Z/ET/b0 5£°E 4O ONIANMA
£5°0 ayiTey  %9L'T 60'TVE'66 ¥6'66  O0'ZEE'66 gzozfor/po OO 00000T SHNYE LIO3Y] WHY4 TwH3034 £L3d3EETE
wo | WY 0ETT 05798 %96E 15702007 %L6E o "9702/20/£0 §'F dYOD ONIONNA
v YR %LLT 18'9T2°001 ZT00T  0O'SEYTOT ezozfez/en OO 00000 SNV 110340 W4 TvH3034 HIdICETS
| S . 9z702/20/20
£E°0 WY ES'PDI 0z'BEY %G6'E  EEZ98'89 %Sy I ;
Z St : Gl 00'000°69 S/8°E d¥OD ONIANNA SHNYE E7{NIEETE
vED wyfiey  %IET 98°996'89 56'66 14864'49 gz0Z/ST/E0 LIO3WD WHVS V83031
_ : . - ) ‘az0z/zz/10
0E'0 WY r9erT £9°06¢ %L6E  VEOIE'EE %0ty )
: : b : et 00'000°001 STT'F d¥OD ONIONNA SNVE FIMAIEETE
10 SYTEY  %LLT 05°LE0'00T 0001 0006t 66 YI0Z YT/ TO 1G4 WYY TY¥3034
[ . . . 520Z/80/21
81°0 WY T0ES bLTSH'T %ary  ZLTZ0'00T %05y - _
. 3 SR _ st 00°000°00T 579'v 4¥O? ONIGNNA SNVE [E1dIEETE
60 Sy TRy %LLT ELPLODO0T £0'00T 00'0ET'00T EZ0T/BI/TT 110340 W4 Y3034
[ =R SZ0Z/ET/TT B
2o WY BREL SLB9B'T %ITY  SYEGE'SE %E6 Y !
) ; Rt ; ke 00°000°00T 518 d¥OD ONIONNA SANVE LEDdIEETE
1o TeY  %LLT ££°£90°00T [000T 006866 szoz/eeht kgt
AINIOV
88T (egze) 709 %Z6'E  SBZ69'E0E WLBE 00°000°00E sav [@oL
e %OES Z0'079'€08 12101 99°ZZL'E0E
761 YN (52°08) 19061 T HOBE | LE9SBO0T HERE e 6202/ST/0T
vy wvv/eey  %SLT 21928001 €SO0 BTESHO0T szorfvr/en 0000000 6YVTROTADIM  CIVOOLIS
89T | Wy (6b9E] L9902 %IQE  TO9EH'TON %SB'E s L202/51/L0
6T WWVIN  %6LT 25666101 OrI0T  ZZEVP'TOT szorfvzen 0000000 59°p ¥ £-4Z0Z VIXINY OedERsc
507 W (609) 68H0T %26E LY 00F'TOT WLEE R 6L0Z/9T/t0
bSE YYWIYN  K6LT 8E VGETOT 6ET0T  ST'OTH'TOT szoz/vz/en D00 000001 19' £ ¥-SZ07 LIVEIN LAVATNES
_ say

UORRING i

Ay

5507 fujen Ju| pansaay MLLA W anjep yoog PlaLL 3seyaing  suf

uonduosag Aundag
‘o O 8 anjep, Jayey Fajid NN SnjEp 1503 ajeq aseyung  fanjep Jegd

fdgs
[sApoow

SZ0¢ ‘0f 1equiandas Jo sy | #TZOTH IUN030Y | 19W3sIq J21eA [edidiuniy ASjjeA [PUGED ues Jaddn

AP LI5S
:m._n_z.q_._u“c 1¥0d3¥ SONIA10H




4| ._d_:rwn__u_zou Sriv ETEDDE | Wod lasseiajpueyd s | Wwor iasseapueya o | Jusuadeuely 1assy Jajpueyy Wd TESOIED SEOF/T0/0T (aw| uopnoax]

15T | W (ge'0s) 00'p18 %86E PO TSH'ES %06'E Iy Lzoz/eofso
651 NIty %S0T 590865 (686 ObEVY6S szozfszfeo 0000003 £°E 07 S53dK3 NYIINIAY RaDasta
ET | wN  (z8'TY) - ooETT %66'E ITETL09 %ER'E == _
5¢T WIEY  HLOT BT TEI'09 PT'TOT  OTEEL'D9 szoz/ezfeo 000008 Lzoz/st/eo gy uz_m_>mm¢ o LHgLEE00
60D | wN o [iry) LO'SE RET'b Ob'9E6 by %BTY S STOZ/E0STT
£0°0 wyy/eey  %sTT 66 TEE'tY D6'66 DE'TSO'ED gzoz/pz/to 0000059 STT'E dHOD L40SOHDIN ChgIoRsS
_ IIYHO4H0D
000 ] 00°0 3%00°0 Tr'660°Y TF'E60'D ysed [e30),
000 %LOD 660t 0o'1 IVE60°Y
D00 Wy DO 00’0 %000 Y660y - I
ooo | YYY/ERY %00 660"y 00T TvEE0Y Tre60F Ll .
HSYD
e (£8'192) O0'ELG %EE'E 05 6T0'00E wIR'E 00°000'00E SHIND Azuady jeloL
59'2 %ET'S E0°LSL'66T Z6'66 £5°610°0DE
£5°F vy (79'9ET) LT LEE %L9E SIS0T'00T BIBE I 870z 5Z 90
vz VWV/TEY  %LLT £9'896'66 (666 L4'SOT00T szoz/vz/en 0P 0PO 00T 9T6'E T¥ 6L0H SWHA oy
orz | wWvY  (ve'66) EROZE %9BE  SSL06'66 WIBE - :
ca'z AWV/TeY %OLT 19 E0V'ES badat Ryetaplihiis swozfvz/eo 0000001 BZOZ/SZ/50 SB'E TV L40-H SINHA |mxm D4/ETE
€z | vy (05s2) 00'SZE REFE  69TT000T WIBE et .
% SINH n 1
157 +VITEY  %LST 6199666 65'66 ZLTTO00T szozfvzfen 00 00000T BZOZ/SZ/V0 6°E TV 9L0-H SWHA LNTILEETE
_ SHIND AINIDY
SO0°T BSLEZZTT FE'SES'PT RI8'E TETI6'TES'T wet 00°000°FES'T Aauaily [mo)
Tt S%ELLT 15'681°5S'T £4°00T TTEFI'TES'T
ELT WY OBELSE LEBIP %S9'E 09t 6YT WISy . BT0Z/80/60 SLE Y
v6'Z +WV/TEY  HOLT 9¥'BI0'EST 00T 0S6S0GNT Ezoz/S1/60 kit SANYE NYOT INOH TViRa3d b
9T | +¥Y¥  O0'00E fadiae] %EY'E 9y 6E2'00T KOH'E . £70Z/90/20 0't dHOD DNIANNA
5g'T YTy %BIT ES'AESODT PS00T  DOERE'DOT vZOZ/ZZ/80 HORONE SNVE L0340 WYv4 V43034 E_,Mﬁmﬂm
wr | Wy EERTLT 8L'708 %69E  I5058'66 %YE'Y I LZOZ/ET/LD ST ¥ AHOD ONIONN
181 HTEY wRLT S¥'595°00T LED0T  0O0'ZSLGE pzozfezfeo 00 000001 SHNYE LIO3HD WHYS TyH3aad FOWUIEETE
vST | Tewy BREZLT 05°LE9°'T %EI'E 0S V5566 NOBY o £Z0Z/0Z/50 5t HOD ONIONNA
va'T HOV/TEY  %ELT BE'RLZ'TOT BI'IOT  DS'HBIG6 pzozfez/so 00 000'00T SHNVE LI3HD INHYS TrH3dad RIGEEE
VT | WY LPBLET ETBL %BI'E 55680521 HSH Y s (Z0Z/9T/E0 5'F dHOD ONIONNA
gy wWYITeY  KETT Z0°69%'9ZT SUIOT  STTI8I'SZT peozfszfen 00 000STT SHNVE 110340 WHY4 Tv¥Ia34 et

[TRITE]
fdas
/s Apoow

UoHRING ssofuien U] panoay WLA WM anjep yood PIalL sEYUNG  SUn)

vonduasag Alunaasg
‘uog Jo % anjep 1aIen P344I BNjEA 1500 aleg seyung  fanjep Jed

Amugy

SZO0T ‘0F Jequiandas Jo sy | $TZOT# UN02IY | 1uIsiq Jajem [ediuniy Aajjen [auges ues Jaddn

ANAWIDYNVYIW 1355V
H3ITANVHD ‘G 1¥0d3¥ SONIAQTOH




g | WILNIaIINDD (LY LTE'008 | wortassesajpueyymmm | wod jasseiaiplieyd@ojul | uawaleusp jessy sajpuey) Wd TZ'SOFED S207/Z0/0T :aun) uoundaxg

000 000 000 %ELE  BYOLEDT WEL'E BYOLE'DT puny 1axse
00’0 %6T'0 By OLE'ST 0ot 8'OLE'IT hauow (ejoL
iy ..__.,_Mmﬁ i S ek MHHMHM“MM RELE v 0LE'9T A 9180 LADNINY 15Ul £0ZAOVSIE
annd
_ LINYYIN AINOW
68'1T Hﬂw.mw.mu L6'TSES %0T'v 9L ES5 606 %S6°E DO'000'S06 aesodio] [Bl0L
ZEL %50°9T S6'E09°806 00T 05'969°L06
s . Bl MM@ - |M.M|_M.M.m.nm - |wmmw %Mmmﬁ ww%mwmau 000000 1LT't dHOD ﬁamhﬂﬂwﬂ%. FIHRTS090
e | ww wer YOITT09 Sroot  arscrs sovseiso 20000 i
e | ey swor weigts  ecwor  ovwsts  swefeeo 000000 GROZ/VT/E0 LYINIOWONIE  6¥a06260
e | viw a0t ovosts  owt  ovaves  soosgeo %% tsvamcomisas S
e eom G e SHORTSAD
o Em w we SR MO mem e e
H_m , &.ﬂ_& HMMV M._“.mm.n_m Mmﬂmﬂ NMMMM% MMMN...WEE fowata 55709 nﬂﬂnﬂﬂﬂw e
| mw e wm e aen e SUNES e
6L v o (v 00°'E01 %EGE  TSBEZO9 %06°E . LE0T/I/BO TTY
95T | W/Z¥  %90°T VO'PTIZ'09 9001 090709 czoz/vz/e0 00 00009 ;%ﬂwﬂﬁwﬁwﬂﬁﬂmmﬁ HatEvEs
A N BN R
UL wwwm e MmN
197 o SR S ori o e Stozvefso 0000003 D iR

Y4
fdas
JsApoow

uoREINg
Apmegy

ssoyfujen “JU| pansxy WLL 1 anjep joog piais aseyaung  sIuUn
‘MOg JO % anjep 1asien 20Ud A anjEp 1500 aleq aseyang  fanjen ded

uopdussag Ajndag

S70T ‘0f Jaquiaidas Jo sy | pTZOT#H WUN02DY | 1oulsig Jalepn [edidiuniy Asjjen [auges) ues Jaddn

30 S
ﬁmﬁnﬁﬂmﬂw“s 140d3Y SONIA10H




6 | TWILNIaIANGD LELE LTEOOR | Worjassei@pueyysmmm | oy 1assuapunpa@aju) | uawadeueyy 1355y &jpueyd Wd TEIS0°E0 SZ0L/Z0/0T "3k uniniaxy

shi | &ﬁw& wm.w.ﬂ.n M.“.ﬂmh_mﬂ Mww% Mwww”mﬂ - ww.__wmmaa it mﬂm_q}E:Emzhmuhﬂﬂﬂ_ﬁ; i
sl Em e ommem w e e o
o | i e Bogsi  nox eare  vewev |DONSU m?,m:ﬂ,_:eﬁmm_ﬁ oDzszIe
1 | swhev sere Yo b ooan aew wunm —
I AL %_;_,._EENEH
G wm o mwt M b M S o
- A N LN R S
g0 | ewiev wet et oo tawres Croetz/sn 000000 E:%Es&mmmw_ﬁ BHOZBLTG
MMM | +¢“ﬂ”_mﬂ Mmﬂnww MMNMM“MM.n Mm.vmmm MMM.MM”MMM WNW_MN._M__.MN.___HQ 00'000'0vT mnmm%ﬂlmﬁhlwuhﬂmmw‘_whmm 08HIZ8Z16
.__MHM | +.ﬁ“ﬂ”man_. Mrﬂ.nm_._mm MWM”M mm.n M_HMM%H MM.”.MMWMM WNMHWN.Wmm.___.mﬂ 00'000'SZY MNW.W}E:EmIPMNFNMMMWM___”M 9INITBLTE
60 | wwitev e e e o 00000001 v mnsausamscann SO0
o | s seve ST TR o vl cms aaonn. Y008
V| e e Waeon  owor  Gewieom rcihn. 0000 sy, eouNs
AMNSYINL SN

EBD B5'6T8 oT'B0T'T %H8'E G66'B0G'PST %IS'Y 000007551 |euoneuesdng
980 WSLT BS'BEZLSST LP00T 0L EvL'PST [ 1=] R
1 | wwiev w0 SERes oot ororvs Szt H0000'SS D e

_ _ —_ _ — _ 9702/51/50

I S R S RN S —
_ IYNOILYNYYANS

Y34
Jdas
fs.Apoow

soneIng ssafujen ‘| panaay WLA 4N @njes yoog plaLs aseyaing  sHun

vopdursag Aunaag
‘uog jo 4 anjes Jalely B3l N anjep 1507 mEq seyaing  fanjes aeg

Apaney

SZ0Z '0€ 42qWa1das Jo 5y | FTZOTH JUN0IDY | 1PUISIQ Jae [ediuniy Aajje [liges ues Jaddn

INTHADYNVIA 1355V
Y3ITANVHD “U 140d34 SONIATOH




ot | IWLNIOIENGD UL ETENDR | WO i@sseapuey s mmm | Wodlasseiapuepa oyl | Juatuadeusiy 1355y Ja|pueig) Wd TTIS0ED ST0E/T0/0T s uogniaxy

TE'PER'ELL'S paniaay +
anjep 1l [RI0L

w L6'0TV'BT 80°L66'0S %v8'E  98'9IV'PEY'S %IV 68'69°629'S alopod [e10L
89T %00°00T £8'L£8'799'S PZ'00T  BL'SEL'LZY'S
9t 67'8Y9'9T v6'578'Se %SL'E  SEBIBZINE %Ly 00'000'STH'T Ainseai] s [e30L
151 %06'ZY ST'80Y'6ZY'Z 09'00T  OP'00S'60L'Z
S8E WY [R9SIE) 768901 %TLE 799L7°151 %99° . 620Z/TE/ZT
sT'Y sww/Tey %9 V609605 PI00T  0ZEBZTST szozfezen 0000008t SL8'E AUNSY3ML SILVLS QILINN it e
SLE WY  05'B96'E TH6L07 %0L'E {5SPY'RpT %Ov'y — - 6ZOZ/OE/TT
v | swv/Tey %697 90'P T 28T 19700 OEVST'BYT pzozfet/zr 00 0000ST SZT'v AHNSYINL SILVLS GILIND R
66T WY LEBLET OL'698'T NI9E  LOSPLBIT WET ¥ o L20Z/ST/TT
Tz | WY %ET'T vrEZZTEL ZOTOT  SLEPIBLT pzozfog/iy 000000t STy AMNSYIHL STUVLS OILINA HAlERas
16T WY DS0LL BTERLT %ZIE 6912466 %Z0'Y o - Zogfstiot
POz wWTRY  %LLT 6T°Z60°00T 6¥00T  SLE6S'66 pzoz/ezfor 00000001 SL8°E AMNSYIHL SUVLS QILINN TonTezIe
(BT | ey (59°pZE) 10641 %IT'E ESTLL6IT NBYE s  {Z0z/sT/60
9T | WWTRY  KTTT (B 9PY'6TT ¥5'66 ETESIBIT vzoz/szfen 00 0000ET SLE'E AHNSYIYL SILVLS OILINN ETREREIG
6LT WY pEpIE 6 ELY %EYE 6128866 %TE'E e LT0Z/s1/80
8T WTEY  %LLT £0'£07/00 12001 0S'ZI8'66 vzoz/zz/go L0 OROOOT 5L'E AUNSYIYL SIAVLS AILINN PTG
69T WY 0LZITT 1£'426 WBbOE TZTET'00T T %0Ew e Zozfstji0
6LT syy/tey  %6LT T6'ES2'T0T SZ'TOT  SLBTZ'00T vzoz/zz/eo  DOO0000T SLE'Y AUNSYINL SIUVLS QILINA tDaTetIe

L e
fdgs
J5.Apooy

uopEINg sso/uen " paniay WA B anjep joog PiaiA aseyaung  suun

vogduasan Auniag
MO 40 5 INEA JARIELNY 234d N ANeA 1500 ajeg aseyng  fonjep teg

Ajaniery

6707 ‘0F Jequiaydas jo sy | $TZ0TH IUN02Y | 1uisig jaep jedpiuniy Asjjep [Puges) ues Jaddn
INFWIDYN VI LI5SV “G
HITANVHD 140d3Y SONIAI10H




7. (e-3)
Financial Reports

00°LLLOL $ | 00’6228 00°008°L 00'620°S 00°00%'L $|leloL

00°0S¥'S 00°0SS‘L 00°0S 00°000°L 00°00S eI21B9) J0j08.IQ

00°06€'Z 000192 00°0S.°L 00°09€ 00°00S BUBjUES 10}23lI(

00°0SZ'Y 00°0S. - 00°0SL - oulAsl] Joydalg

00°L8L'Y 00618 - 00°6LY 00°00¥ Mojja4 Jojaalig

00°005°Z $ | 00°005'Z - 00°005'Z - $ zaAeyD Jojo8lIQ
Buiuleway lenjoy gz-deg Gz-bny sz-Inr 10398.1Q
asuejeg alLA

GZ0Z ‘0¢ 1oquwaldeag papua pouiad ay)} 104
sasuadx3g yoseasnQ Jojoaliq jo Aiewwing

yousIq J91ep (edidiungy AsjjeA |21qges) ueg saddn

LOTRLSHT W3LVM TWIDINTIW
MTIVA FIEIVD NVS B340




Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Qutreach Program Expenses
Summary of Director Outreach Expenses

Director Chavez

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
0B/05/25 2025 Covina Valley Golf Tournament 1,000.00 24165 Optimist International
DB/25/25 2025 LPCF Golf Tournament 1,500.00 24182 La Puente Community Foundation
Total _Z50000

QOutreach Fund Balance

2,500.00



Uppear San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expenses
Summary of Director Outreach Expenses

Director Fallow

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Racipient
07/06/25 Summer Concert 2025 400.00 24141 City of Monnovia
0813125 Super Box Listing 2025/26 418.00 24175 Chamber Directory Services

Outreach Fund Balance

Total

818.00
E———————

4,181.00



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expenses
Summary of Director Outreach Expenses

Director Trevifo

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
DBOS/25  Rose Parade Sponsorship 750.00 24166 South Pasadena Tournament of Roses Association
Total 750.00

Outreach Fund Balance

4,250.00



_Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Qutreach Program Expenses
Summary of Director Dutreach Expenses

Director Santana

Pald Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
07M52s Pride of tha Valley 5K Run/Fun Walk 500.00 24145 City of Baldwin Park
0&05/25 2025 Membership Fee 310,00 24164 Irwindale Chamber of Commerce
081325 2025-2026 Annual Membership 50.00 24174 Baldwin Park Business Association
090925 Dia De Los Muerios 750.00 24131 Downtawn El Mante Business Assoclation
pamans 3rd Annual Goll Tournaman S00.00 24192 San Gabrie! Valley Conservation and Service Corps
0916425 Toy Drive and Golf Toumament S00.00 24207 Baldwin Park Business Association
Total 2.610.00

Outreach Fund Balance 2,390.00
— s e a i maia



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expanses
Summary of Director Outreach Expenses

Director Garcia
Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
07108/25 2025 Film Faslival 500.00 24142 Film It West Covina
DB/D525 2025 Covina Vallay Goll Tournament 1,000.00 24165 Optimist Inlernational
09025 Fastival of Frights 2025 50.00 24180 Waest Covina Community Services Foundation
Total 1,550.40

Outreach Fund Balance

3,450.00
ey



8. (a)
Action

RESOLUTION NO. 11-25-672

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
HONORING THE RETIREMENT OF RUBEN GALLEGOS

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, following 19 years of dedicated and remarkable
service at the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper Water), will retire
on November 14, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, Community Outreach Specialist, has supported a
wide range of special events and conservation distribution programs for residents to enjoy
and learn about water use efficiency, including WaterFest, the Watershed Restoration
Program, and the Community Outreach Booth Program; and

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, has assisted Upper Water’s in fostering positive
community relationships in the San Gabriel Valley by establishing connections with
sponsors and community leaders that helped further the District’s mission and values;
and

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, has demonstrated extensive knowledge and
involvement in Upper Water's operations, serving in multiple roles throughout his career,
including Secretary/Receptionist and Project Assistant, where he supported the District’s
internal administration and external programs, demonstrating his commitment to
maintaining efficient operations and providing dependable administrative support to staff
and the public;

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, has utilized his previous experience in public-
facing roles to serve the water community, ensuring excellent customer service to the 22
water retailers, surrounding water agencies and community groups that he has worked
with; and

WHEREAS, Ruben Gallegos, has earned the respect and trust of his colleagues
and external stakeholders for his professionalism and positive, collaborative nature
demonstrated throughout his career; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:



Section 1: The Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District Board of Directors
hereby honors Ruben Gallegos for the positive impact he has made throughout the San
Gabriel Valley region.

Section 2: The Upper Water Board of Directors hereby recognizes the many
contributions made by Ruben Gallegos throughout his 19-year tenure.

Section 3: The Upper Water Board of Directors hereby congratulates Ruben
Gallegos on his significant career and wishes him the best as he embarks on a most
deserving and fulfilling retirement.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 12" day of November 2025.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Jennifer Santana, President
ATTEST:

Ed Chavez, Secretary

(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven P. O'Neill, District Counsel



e oo v 20 - 624-443-2297 ¢ infousgvmwd.org
MEMORANDUM

ITEM 8. (c)

ACTION

DATE: November 12, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Additional Discretionary Payment for Upper Water's Unfunded Accrued Liability with CalPERS
and Conftribution to the California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust Fund

Recommendation
Administration and Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors:
1. Authorize an additional discretionary payment of $500 thousand to CalPERS fo reduce Upper
Water's unfunded accrued liability related to pension.
2. Authorize additional contribution to the California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust Program
{CEPPT) Program of $500 thousand.
Background
Additional Discretionary Payment for CalPERS UAL
From 2022 to 2024, the Board of Directors authorized additional discretionary payments (ADP) to CalPERS
totaling $2 million. These additional payments increased Upper Water's funded ratio from 72% to 88% as of
the most recent valuation report with measurement date June 30, 2024, Upper Water's unfunded accrued
liability (UAL) for pension amount to $1.83 million as of the last valuation.

Working with a CalPERS actuary, staff ran scenarios assuming an additional payment of $500 thousand.
Results showed that that this additional payment could potentially save the District about $281 thousand in
interest payments over 10 years using CalPERS' current discount rate of 6.8,

Additional Deposit to the CEPPT, a Section 115 Irevocable Trust

In 2022, the Board authorized the establishment of a CEPPT trust fund, a self-funded, not-for-profit, Section
115 trust administered by CalPERS for pension contributions. From 2022 to 2024, the District deposited a toral
of $1.50 million into the trust fund. The market value of Upper Water's CEPPT fund as of the quarter ended
September 30, 2025 is $1.78 million which translates to an annual yield of 9.74%. CEPPT funds can be
accessed to stabilize rates and offset future contribution increases and act as a rainy-day fund during
adverse budgetary or economic conditions.

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




Monrovis, CA 91016 " o2603.2297 ¢ infomgumwd.crg
MEMORANDUM

ITEM 8. (d)

ACTION

DATE: November 12, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM:  General Manager

SUBJECT: Purchase of Untreated Water for Cyclic Storage

Recommendation
Administration and Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General
Manager to purchase up to 7,500 acre feet of unireated water for Upper District's cyclic storage account.

Background

Between 2014 and 2023, Upper Water purchased more than 14,000 acre feet of untreated water for cyclic
storage. As of October 31¢, Upper Water has sold about 13,000 acre feet of water at prices reflecting the
cumulative annual increases in Metropolitan’s untreated water rates, generating a favorable financial
return. Since 2014, Metropolitan's untreated water rate has increased by approximately 54% or an
average of 4.50% per year. Metropcalitan's rate for untreated water will increase by 7.89% effective
January 2024, providing good investment return on water pre-purchases.

As of October 31, 2025, Upper Water has sufficient reserve funds fo purchase up to 7,500 acre feet of
untreated water for cyclic storage. As of the same date, Metropolitan's cyclic storage account has
147,300 acre feet of water available for purchase.

Beyond the financial advantages, maintaining an active storage account provides operational benefits.
Adeqguate storage participation supports Metropalitan's system flexibility and enhances the likelihood of
future delivery opportunities during periods when State Water Project deliveries are favorable. This helps
ensure Upper Water continues to have reliable access to imported water, while also maximizing the cost-
effectiveness of its long-term supply planning.

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




it e |y s r—
s san A MEMORANDUM
ltem 8. (e)
ACTION
DATE: November 12, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: ADHOC Report - Puente Hills Regional Park Sponsorship

Recommend Action
Staff is seeking direction from the Board regarding the ADHOC Sponsorship Committee's review and
recommendation of the Puente Hills Regional Park Sponsarship.

Background

On May 28", the Board of Directors formed an AdHoc committee consisting of Directors Katarina
Garcia and Ed Chavez, to review two sponsorship requests. The goal of this committee was to
review the Puente Hills Regional Park project and Valley County's Qutdoor Education Center and
Demonstration Garden. The committee met with staff on June 19" and again on September 4
to review both projects and assess the community value and need for the project, project
alignment with Upper Water's strategic goals, and potential financial sponsorship opportunities.

The Puente Hills Regional Park project presented several sponsorship levels for the committee to
consider, which can be found in the attachment. The sponsorship commitment would be for the
Environmental Justice Center of the Puente Hills Regional Park, that recently broke ground in the
Summer of 2025. Additional questions from the commitiee centered on potential for educational
displays and water filling stations throughout the facility. The committee focused on one level -
Named Learning Corner - which would provide for 500 SF of learning space at an outdoor area of
the Environmental Justice Center. The corner will have a display opportunity for Upper Water to
work with the designers to create a learning display. Some potential ideas would be an
educational display on our local water supply, the water cycle and branding opportunities for
Upper Water. The financial commitment for the Named Learning Corner is $150,000. This funding
would be dllocated by the Board from existing reserves.

In regard to Valley County's Qutdoor Education Center and Demonsiration Garden, the
committee recommended that staff continue to work with Valley County staff to find other grant
funding sources to help with the project. The committee remains interested in the project and
would like to bring this project back to the Board with a recommendation at a later date.

Staff is seeking direction from the Board on approving the AdHoc committee's recommendation
to approve a sponsorship level of $150,000 for the Named Learning Corner at the Puente Hills
Regional Park, Environmental Justice Center.

ATTACHMENT

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT




NOILYLNISIHd AMIN AITTVA 13148YD NVS ¥3ddN Z0r0-SZ0T
1V 404 Yied e Buipjing

NdvYd TYNOIIIY STIIH JIN3Nd




-

]

-

-

-

-
s

I 01 440 ¥ WAV TYNDISISH STIH LN

zS._ LIS 313




WOOTH3IAD BZ0Z

+ OVY0H 40071 BZ0Z

T s Ry e e WA

QVIHTIVHL TTIN NYIWAHHOM L20Z

|
o
L1
P

T4

B oo B 39N30D3S ININIAO 8




i e IR N T ¥

e, ..._ i | ... r._ 1_. N IS 1

© 970Z T1V4 SIDVdS INJId HLIM J¥NLVN OL SS3DV ONIGIAO¥d

HILYVIHLIHdWY QY ALHNOD NOLLONN4-34d YZVd TWAIMEY DONIHOVOHddY VIHY SNINYYIT H00aLNO/ JINDId OL H1vd




NDISIA JALLYHINIOIY 2 ALINIGYNIVLSNS ONIHIANEA

-
. o
' i

SILNNLYOddO 11IHINOD NITHD
DNINYYIT AIDNYHNI ANV "HI078 ANINNOEHYD "HIEWLL SSVYIN HLIM

SSINTIAM LNYdNID0 HO4 FHNLYN OL NOSHYD O3I008WI NI NOLLONOTY %05
§5320V "8 SMIIA + LHOMAYA ALNYND

FINIMISIH
ONIATING JI¥L3313 %001 IONYHNI OL MOH NHV31 0151001 +
SIVIHALYW LSTT 338 ON = @ + OY07 JIHL2373 3DNAa3Y 0L NOLLYILLNIA 1VIH IWIHLKT 40 SIWLL NI HILNID ONTIO0D @%
STVIHALYW DNIOTING AHLTYIH TVHNLYN "ONIOYHS DNIGNTONI @@ JAINOHd OL §nNH IONINISIH ALINNWWOD
SATDIALVHLS FAISSYd SIDLLOVHL 1538
FOYATYS AWONODI HYTNDHDD SLSIALLDY FDLLSNM TVINIWNOYIANT 40
'STIVIHALYIN LNILNOD a3T12AD3H HOTH SIAIVLIOAOLOHd JLIS-NO HLIM NOLLYHINID LX3IN IHL DONTHIMOdNG NDIS3a
"JLSYM NOLLONYLSNOD 40 NOISHIAIO @ @ ADHANT %501 JAINOHd OL L1IDHYL NO = @ IVHLNIN NOBYYD T1aVNIVLISNS 1538 @

%56 /M ILSYM ONDINIHLIY NOBYYD TYNOLLYHId0 OH3IZ LIN HOd TO0L ONINYYIT ¥ S1 ONIGTING JHLLNI



wl
)
=
T
L
u
s o
o
[
v
o
o
O
=
o
-
T2
W
L
L
v
<
L
=
=
S
=
=
o
w
)
=
=
Ll
-
vl
o
[T




IIIIII|I|I|1I|I|I|.|.|
= —— - —

SIDNIMIAXT LNIWIDYONI ANV DONINYYIT ‘WNISNIN 40 1539 IHL ONINISWOD

SIdesd |jem pue USSP WOOJSSE|D WOISNT STX0E 45 0E9 _
WTS
INOOYSSY10 A3NVN




sajydesd jjem tmm US|Sap WOOISSE|D Wolsn) 6T0E 45 0E9
INTS
INOOYSSY 10 A3NVN




NN NE RN

saydesd [jem pue

UHIS3p WOOJSSe| Wolsnd) GTX0E 45 0E9

WTS
WOOHSSY10 A3NWVN



§
-
g g

H

=il




" / _r'.._l ..;
TR
45 0009
000'0S4S
JHIVIHLIHANY H00a.LNO A3WVN




SANYd
an M
- YINHOAYD
dPvNDIS [
BN L3 el M 3L M

= iy,

TIivH
LiBIHX3

FIVHEAL LIFIHXT IHL 1Y NDIS3a LIEIHX3 WOLsSND

M0SZS
JOvHYAL LIGIHX3 IHL

L ™




(318YIVAY £) 45 005
cncﬁm.ﬁm

d3INJ0O ONINYVIT A3IWVN

- = .




g T e

— — . — Hl.l.llll_uld

m—

¥ O Y



J0VHYIL
ATV
£ ana i

|- .30VHNIL
~ 9% daddn

>~ 4 .n._.
. : g . gl 2 107 Saiafvrey
- .

: o / Jowarlof
g - e - L n e =
EWWEU . - ...._.....“..n. h ] ._..
AHG Lo S SR ] ; :

L 4
= I8 ......
8 T
dNE M SR Tl
ain o :
- ,.L_ P ..\_n#.

IWYHOOHd IDVNDIS INLYLINdHILNI ‘SYIHY ONINEYIT ANV DINDId 35 0009
000°009S

S30VHH3L H00ALNO A3NVYN

ARTIA 313 & Avia | skl AKW=S 3w




L
o ;
ST

WYHOO0Hd 3D9YNDIS IALLYIIHAHILN| SYIHY DNINHYIT ONY 2INDId 45 0009

000'0095

S30vyy3l mODﬁFDO n_m:}_iz
e, = e = e i




e /) oy ..J... :
W WY

S

i r
% " -t : e Fa » - -

5 ~u._.,.__\ N

2 - wad= T

Ed.qrmm_uxn FEYNDIS ALY LIHIHILNI .m”ﬁmxﬂ SMNINYYIT ONY 2INDId 45 0009 :
000'009S .,
S3IVHYIL HO0ALNO AIWVN F

L




T e W
WouR |
/Jfr W IO B0y ROg Py |
WAL PR G TR ety
ALY Y OO TR DYy
0 oy Ao WY 4
aavaiacays fuyabony » Eur] ~q
WoRg e g AioD g
PO SV, AiaiD
g S o)
Oy Shrusel vy v
an3om

000°0095
S33vHY31 400ALNO d3NVN
NV¥1d A3 ONIONYT | SONIHSINYNG 3118



i _mmﬂ
ZNNE

NOILYLS
LHO4WOD

WYHOO¥d OVNDIS IALVLINAUILNI ‘SYIHY ONINBYIT ANV DINIId 45 0009
0000095
S33vy431 4000d1N0 AIWVN




248 E, Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 =
Monravia, CA, 9018 P 626-843-2297 £ info@usgvmwd.ong
i v MEMORANDUM
Item 8. (f)
ACTION

Date: November 12, 2025

To: Board of Directors

From: General Manager

Subject: Federal Bill Summaries and Positions

Recommendation

Approve staff recommendations for federal bills H.R. 4733, H.R. 5414, H.R. 5513, H.R. 5564, and H.R
5661, which align with Upper Water's 2025-26 Legislative Policy Principles adopted by the Board in
January 2025.

Federal Bill Analysis

H.R. 4733 - Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program Establishment Act
Introduced in the House on July 23, 2025, by Rep. Eric Sorensen (D-IL-17).
Summary: The bill would make permanent a national water assistance program by directing the

Secretary of Health and Human Services and EPA Administrator to provide grants to states, territories,
and tribes to help low-income households pay drinking water and wastewater bills. The program
would align eligibility with existing federal assistance programs like LIHEAP, TANF, and SNAP, ensuring
consistent income requirements. It would also provide technical support to small, rural, and Tribal
water systems to improve service delivery.

Action: On July 23, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure, and to the Committee on Energy and Commerce.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support

H.R. 5414 - DAMS Act
Introduced in the House on September 16, 2025, by Rep. Jefferson Van Drew (R-NJ-2).
Summary: The bill would reauthorize the National Dam Safety Program, extending the authorization of

appropriations for the rehabilitation of high hazard potential dams through 2031. The program,
managed by FEMA, is a partnership between states, temitories, federal agencies, and other
stakeholders. It works to:

+ Educate the public and dam owners about dam safety;

« Implement States to use a risk-based priority system for identifying such dams;

e Support decision-makers with access to data, tools, and resources; and

e Improve overall dam safety through collaboration and information sharing.
Action: On September 16, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure, and on September 17, 2025, referred to the Subcommittee on Economic Development.
Public Buildings, and Emergency Management.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT uvpperwater.org




H.R. 5513 - To amend the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to make certain technology investments
eligible for additional subsidization, and for other purposes.

Introduced in the House on September 19, 2025, by Rep. Vince Fong (R-CA-20).

summary: The billwould amend the Federal Water Pollution Contral Act to clarify eligible uses under

the Clean Water State Revolving Fund for advanced software and monitoring tools, ultimately
empowering communities to modernize their water management systems. It authorizes the
implementation or use of processes, materials, techniques, or technologies—including software for
asset management, operational analysis, and advanced digital construction management systems—
to support water- and energy-efficiency goals, mitigate stormwater runoff, and carry out projects that
are cost-effective and sustainably planned, designed, and constructed.

Action: On September 19, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure, and on September 20, 2025, referred to the Subcommittee on Water Resources and
Environment.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Suppori

H.R. 5544 — Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act

Intfroduced in the House on September 26, 2025, by Reps. Salud Carbajal (D-CA-24) and David
Valadao (R-CA-22)

Summary: The bill would reauthorize three critical federal programs to help address the cost of water

system resilience by offering competitive grants to help communities:
= Enhance water supply reliability;
* Increase resilience to natural disasters, extreme weather, and cybersecurity threats; and
« Investininnovative technological solutions.

The Drinking Water System Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Program, originally established in
the America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018, serves small and disadvantaged communities.
Complementary programs, including the Clean Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability
Program and the Midsize and Large Drinking Water System Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability
Program, support wastewater systems and larger drinking water systems. All three programs are set to
expire next year, and the bill would reauthorize funding through 2031 to ensure that the nation's
drinking water, wastewater, and stormwater infrastructure remains resilient to a wide range of threats.
Action: On September 26, 2025, the bill was referred to the Committee on Energy and Commerce,
and to the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support

H.R. 5641 — Water Preservation and Affordability Act
Introduced in the House on September 30, 2025, by Reps. Emilia Strong Sykes (D-OH-13)
Summary: The Water Preservation and Affordability Act would amend the Federal Water Pollution

Control Act to promote the use of "“resource preservation techniques.” including water and energy
efficiency, stormwater mitigation, and sustainable project planning. The bill would require the
incorporation of these techniques in federally funded water projects and authorize increased funding
for the Wastewater Efficiency Grant Pilot Program and the Clean Water Infrastructure Resiliency and
Sustainability Program through FY2031.

Action: On September 30, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




e sl B * mosuspmus o
S Ceman MEMORANDUM
Item 8. (g)
ACTION
DATE: November 12, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to execute a professional services confract with

Soto Resources for as-needed services for grant assistance in the amount not to
exceed $75,000 through June of 2027.

Recommendation
Authorize the General Manager to execute a professional services contract with Soto Resources for
as-needed services for grant assistance in the amount not to exceed $75,000 through June of 2027.

Background

Upper Water has been very successful in securing grant funding to help support many of the
agency's conservation and recycled water projects. Since 2007, over $28 million in federal and
state grant funds have been awarded to Upper Water.

Grant writing efforts have been a joint effort by staff and grant writing consultants. Continuing the
effort to successfully pursue grant funding, staff recommends retaining Soto Resources to track and
identify grant opportunities for Upper Water's priorities and assist with grant writing and reporting.

Since 2015, Upper Water has utilized Soto Resources for grant assistance and was successful in
acquiring $10 million in grants for various water efficiency and watershed restoration projects. Most
recently, Soto Resources assisted staff in securing two U.5. Bureau of Reclamation grants for the
Water Smart Home Kit program and the Plant Voucher program. Currently, Upper Water has a
pending federal grant application to assist with drafting of a golden mussel control plan.

Staff is recommending that the Board authorize a new agreement for grant assistance with Soto
Resources for the next two years. Soto Resources has submitted a fee schedule which is attached.
Additionally, retaining Soto Resources will allow Upper Water to continually seek alternative
funding opportunities that will assist in meeting Upper Water's sirategic goals.

ATTACHMENT

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




Soto Resources
Professional Funding Senvices
(949) 370-6079

Joey@solore Sources. com

October 30, 2025

Patty Cortez

Assistant General Manager

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
248 E. Foothill Blvd Suite 200

Monrovia, CA 91016

T (626) 443-2297

Patty@usgvmwd.or

Subject: Proposal for General Grant Assistance Services for Upper San Gabriel Valley
Municipal Water District Projects

Dear Patty:

It has been a pleasure working with you to provide grant assistance services for Upper
San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper Water, District). Upper Water is an
important client of Soto Resources, and together we have secured $2,811,500 in grant
funding for important District projects. We are excited about this opportunity to continue
our success with you and your team. Per your request, this proposal is to continue to
provide general grant assistance services for Upper Water, including grant funding
research & tracking, application preparation and submittal, and funding agreement
management and reporting, and the positive results that you've come to expect from Soto
Resources. We take great pride in the level of expertise we offer, based on over 20 years
of experience.

Below is the scope of work and fee schedule for providing general grant assistance
services for Upper Water.

Scope of Work

Soto Resources’ general grant assistance services may include, but are not limited to the
following:

Task 1. Meetings and Priority Project List

Participate in meetings to discuss priority projects and the funding needed. Soto
Resources will develop and maintain a priority project list. The Soto Resources team will
attend meetings with District staff, as appropriate, to review and discuss the status of and
updates to the District’s priority projects in need of funding. Based on our discussions,
Soto Resources' efforts will focus on identifying funding for the following priority projects:



Soto Resources
Professional Funding Services
_(949) 370-6073
Jogy@soforesources. com

1 San Gabriel River Golden Mussel Control Project

2. Baldwin Park Learning Center Project

3. Conservation Incentives (rebates)

4.  Drought tolerant landscaping for streets

5. Stormwater capture (already capture most water)

6. Water loss reduction (i.e., leak detection, smart meters)
7. Watershed Restoration Program

8. Water quality and water use efficiency (DAC focus)

9. Lead pipe replacement (DAC focus)

10. Water Smart Home Program (DAC focus)

11. Whittier Narrows Recycled Water Reliability Project

12. Angeles National Forest Post-Fire Infrastructure Improvements
13. Indirect Reuse Replenishment Project

14. Residential Plant Voucher Program

Task 2. Funding Research
Soto Resources will research eligible funding opportunities (grants and loans) for the
District's priority projects. Research efforts may also include the following:

+ Contact funding agencies to discuss project eligibility and to achieve updated
program information.

+ Review grant funding guidelines, proposal solicitation packages (state grants), or
funding opportunity announcements (federal grants) to determine project eligibility,
maximum funding award amount, timeframe for completing the project, cost/level
of effort to prepare the grant proposal, proposal due date, and competitiveness.

« Participate in funding agency meetings and attend workshops for selected
opportunities.

The federal, state, and local funding opportunities that may be researched include, but
are not limited to, the following:

Federal Emergency Management Act (FEMA)
. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

United States Environmental Protection Agency (EFPA)
. Reduction in Lead Exposure Via Drinking Water
@ Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) Loans Program

United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
e WaterSMART: Water and Energy Efficiency Grant Program
. WaterSMART: Small-Scale Water Efficiency Projects
. WaterSMART: Drought Response Program - Drought Resiliency Projects
. WaterSMART: Drought Response Program - Planning and Project Design

2



Soto Resources
Professional Funding Services
{548) 370-6079

Jogy@E soloresources.com

WaterSMART: Aquatic Ecosystem Restoration Projects

WaterSMART: Environmental Water Resources Projects

Water Conservation Field Services Program, Lower Colorado River Region
Bay-Delta Restoration Program: CALFED Water Use Efficiency Grants

Caﬂfc:-m.-a Department of Water Resources (DWR)

Proposition 4 Projects related to Integrated Regional Water Management
to improve climate resilience on a watershed basis

. Proposition 4 Groundwater Banking, Groundwater Recharge, or Instream
Flow Projects that Support Conjunctive Use of Groundwater and Surface
Water Supplies

. Proposition 4 Capital Investments in Brackish Desalination, Contaminant
and Salt Removal, and Salinity Management Projects to Improve Water and
Drought Resilience

- Proposition 4 Improve Water Data Management and Reactivate Existing
Stream Gages and Deploy New Gages

e Proposition 4 Regional Conveyance Projects or Repairs to Existing
Conveyances

. Proposition 4 Projects that Increase Water Conservation in Agricultural and
Urban Areas

. Proposition 4 Flood Management Projects

- Proposition 4 Dam Safety and Climate Resilience Local Assistance
Program

- Proposition 4 Riverine Stewardship Program

" Proposition 4 Urban Streams Restoration Program

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW)

. Watershed Restoration and Delta Water Quality and Ecosystem
Restoration Grant Programs
. Environmental Enhancement Fund

California Department of Parks and Recreation
. Recreational Trails Program
. Land and Water Conservation Fund

California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank)
o Proposition 4 Public financing of clean energy transmission projects

California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA)
. Proposition 4 Projects that improve conditions on wildlife refuges and
wetland habitat areas



Soto Resources

Frofessional Funding Services
(948) 370-6079
Josyli@sotoresources.com

Proposition 4 Nature and Climate Education and Research Facilities,
Nonprofit Organizations and Public Institutions, Natural History Museums,
California Zoos and Aquariums, and Geologic Heritage Sites

Proposition 4 Improve Local Fire Prevention Capacity, Improve Forest
Health and Resilience, and Reduce the Risk of Wildfire Spreading into
Populated Areas from Wildlands

Proposition 4 Forest health and watershed improvement projects in forests
and other habitats

Proposition 4 Urban Greening Program

Proposition 4 Reduction of climate impacts on disadvantaged communities
and vulnerable populations and the creation, protection, and expansion of
outdoor recreation opportunities

California Office of Emergency Service/Cal FIRE

Proposition 4 Wildfire Mitigation Grant Program
Proposition 4 Forest Health Program for long-term forest health projects.
Proposition 4 Grants to conduct fuel reduction, structure hardening, create

defensible space, reforestation, or targeted acquisitions to improve forest
health and fire resilience

Proposition 4 Urban Forests
Proposition 4 Community Resilience Centers

California Water Commission

Proposition 4 Water Storage Investment Program

California Wildlife Conservation Board

Proposition 4 Stream Flow Enhancement Program

Proposition 4 Grant programs to protect and enhance fish and wildlife
resources and habitat and achieve the state’s biodiversity, public access,
and conservation goals

Proposition 4 Projects that improve habitat connectivity and establish
wildlife crossings and corridors

San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy

Wildfire Prevention Grant Program

Proposition 4 San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains
Conservancy for watershed improvement, wildfire resilience, chaparral and
forest restoration, and workforce development

Proposition 4 Reduce risks of climate change impacts upon communities,
fish and wildlife, and natural resources, and increase public access

State Water Resources Control Board

Drinking Water Grants & Loans (Clean, Safe and Reliable Drinking Water)



Soto Resources
Frofessional Funding Services
(948) 370-6079
Joey@soloresources. com

Nonpoint Source Grant Program: U.S. EPA Clean Water Act Section 319
Proposition 4 Grants and Loans that Improve Water Quality or Help to
Provide Clean, Safe, and Reliable Drinking Water

. Proposition 4 Grants and Projects Related to Water Reuse and Recycling
- Proposition 4 Multiple-benefit Urban Stormwater Management
. Other Proposition 4 Funded Programs

Task 3. Funding Matrix and Monthly Reporting for Priority Projects

Soto Resources will maintain a funding matrix (spreadsheet) summarizing the District's
priority projects and identifying the potential funding opportunities for each. The funding
matrix will provide important funding program information, including program name and
agency, funding purpose, funding amounts, key dates/deadlines. The funding matrix will
be provided via email as a monthly report on current funding opportunities for the District's
Projects. As needed, a funding alert email may be submitted to District staff when funding
information is timely and needs to be distributed prior to regularly scheduled meetings.

Task 4. Grant Management and Reporting

Upon award of funding, grant management and reporting services will be provided to
manage the grant/funding award. Grant management may include assisting the District
with negotiation and execution of the Funding Agreement with the funding agency;
understanding project implementation reporting and invoicing requirements, establishing
grant close-out procedures; and setting up appropriate reporting documents for progress
reports and invoicing. District staff will be responsible for the invoicing portion of the
required grant/funding agreement reporting. The following projects have funding awards
that require ongoing grant management and reporting for the term of the agreement:

» Water Smart Home Program - Awarded $150,000 from the USBR Water and
Energy Efficiency Grant Program (federal)

» Residential Plant Voucher Program - Awarded $100,000 from the USBR Small-
Scale Water Efficiency Projects Program (federal)

Task 5. Additional services (As Needed)

Soto Resources will perform other required tasks for funding related efforts on an as-
needed basis, as requested by the District. Soto Resources and subcontracted staff, as
assigned, will work closely with Upper Water to communicate with funding agencies
regarding District projects to identify funding opportunities and to determine whether or
not to proceed with a grant or loan application (also known as Go/No-Go Process). Upper
Water will be responsible for providing project information required to complete funding
related tasks. When the District decides to pursue a funding opportunity, a separate
proposal or task order for completing the grant or loan application will be provided by Soto
Resources to the District, upon request. This is because the level of effort for application
preparation depends significantly on both the application requirements and the amount
of existing project information available.



Soto Resources
Professional Funding Services
______(949) 370-6079
JosyE soloresources.com

Fee Schedule

The table below shows the anticipated Soto Resources team member and bill rate
required to perform the proposed services. The services will be performed on an hourly
basis, for a total cost not to exceed $75,000 through June 30, 2027. Invoices will be
submitted on a monthly basis.

riipah'Projer.:t I’ﬁ\‘l.i'.mglanr I
Senior Grant $205
Researcher/Writer

. Senior Engineer/Grant
Jennifer Nevius, P.E. Ressarcher\Writer $185
Engineer/Grant
Researcher/Writer* v

Notes: *Subconsultant rate shown includes markup. Other direct costs such as copying,
reproduction, delivery, postage, mileage (rates allowed by current IRS guidelines), are
not included in the fee estimate and will be billed separately if incurred. Soto Resources
reserves the right to adjust its hourly rates at the beginning of the calendar year for all
ongoing contracts.

Joey Soto, M.S.

Jane Soule, P.E.

Please contact me with any questions. | look forward to working together to acquire
more grant funding for Upper Water Projects!

Sincerely,

0k

Ms. Joey Soto, M.S.

Principal

Soto Resources

30767 Gateway Place #505
Rancho Mission Viejo, CA 92694
Ph. 949-370-6079

Email joey@sotoresources.com



bt IR e —
s e MEMORANDUM
Item. 8 (h)
ACTION
Date: November 12, 2025
To: Board of Directors
From: General Manager

Subject: FY 25-26 Water Education Grant Program

Recommendation
Staff recommends the funding of 24 grant applications for the Water Education Grant Program
in FY 25-26, totaling $19,221.09.

Background

The open application period for Upper Water's Water Education Grant Program (WEGP) was
announced during public comment at various school districts across the service area in August
and September 2025. School districts were subsequently noftified via email and mail. In addition,
staff made the application available on Upper Water's website, social media accounts, e-
Mewsletter, and shared it with conservation coordinators during the most recent Conservation
Action Roundtable meeting. The deadline for the first round of completed applications was
October 31, 2025.

Discussion
For the fiscal year 2025-26, the Board of Directors approved a budget allocation of $55,000 for
educational materials and grant programs, with $20,000 dedicated to the Water Education
Grant Program (WEGP) and the remaining $25.000 allocated to educational videos and other
materials.

Staff has reviewed all grant applications in accordance with the program's criteria, conditions,
and educational goals, receiving a total of 28 applications. Of these, 24 meet the program
guidelines and fall within the approved budget allocation. Four applications were received after
the submission deadline. These applications are included in the attached project summary for
reference. Of the four, staff does not recommend one, as it does not meet program requirements.
Staff requests direction from the committee regarding whether to fund the remaining three,
which would increase the total funding amount to $22,171.09.

The review criteria included the following:
Does the project offer a better understanding of water and the important role it plays?
Does the project actively engage students in the learning process and enhance the
classroom experience?
Are components of the project inter-disciplinary?
Does the budget cover the activities proposed?
Are the student activities, goals, and objectives clearly defined?

The attached table lists each of the 28 applications with a project summary.

[{Aattachment

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org




— “BANIY SETWERTY B R0)
TP |RIFEL BUlSTo J0 a0uriOdil] By} PUE SIed) aUnG0 Suasss s gued o i perssspan
i fic L opsA LR B 1 ok ARSI TR I 5 4O PuSLOUd
yicm-pra anpinsas) s ASy UniETS SGIRaNA T-U1-S G SR U SR BT Y I el Bl corgked DOShLS ¥ ez T DElE | Meoatway | ey Aaaen 1255 | 100UDS Mogie sy s Mg ) ey ajeuiry por 00D axie, | SRAOL/OT
HUDE S5 WD TR DU BENAIITHALES 1] SIB1| N V0TI WAL MO IR ([P RTUBRRIN TR0 S0 vl
Aquaiy SBR[ BIITT SL PUR SInGUSsgny S0 jTrs BIE JRern ML ey sasinoesd B ViueuLsde
UEHLPURY Pus o Ty oG EBruiy) RBURYD BERUE PUB #OAD JagRe 3y CHTEE (M LSRN
_ AU PUELT DUP GAASTO0) UD PISFOO) LISAITD PR SE-aIuaNT
03 VU SRR pe Tl wnany) snoge Bumiag) R0 1 T |
1 IR 1PN Wil | Thdeaitiaidg wo-Tpaey giecusg iaiem o sauadoud syl Bumanisp
g, WU M b NEIRY P LD i) 8 peT AL R TRURPATE “IY 00 SMeM, (NUUOTH |  COBEES 00 REES 114 nt ] oLt Rar) apeiia ) way Mo TESE | (o el dn g My i) adumyy ageann srforion | ®
B pur yoog Auaiie sy sl SR i i Buiie aiem i veog ainsiin|
) P G ARUPED FNESED 500 A el Tpoc B vuannsedes per SBuipeas s o e
_-.i_..n_.__t.._Z.-!_E-%_Eignﬁzguisinﬁti-!-aa
m FAMOAaT FEITGET [EU ¥ T8 SR j0 rieuarme Beie )
R SRR 0 R A e e T 30Ut AR PUR UOiSTnUILEG] UoHRATED)
E.:ﬂdﬁ:iﬁﬁbihﬂ?ﬂ?ﬁ _hatctiﬁiﬂﬁgﬁﬂ 00'L665 004855 o |wwn | o CRLTE  |Mmaowa) | wey ApasoD TISS | 90YS MoGED YT IS gy o] R sefocor | ¢
SUUSRATE *|IBEAY “AB Sy ST DUN THUHLRIES LO-SPUng GINOIY] UCHRAITIUCT JUIE 'R0 ‘a0
[ Egg 3 et s @ TUIEN U ORI SDIUNT, MU0 [|1M TR g § 1)
...Il-lq-__....ﬂﬂﬂ
Jueyd i su _n!aﬂiu-t!._..ﬂu- i pue Buppsagnad sy jo B 1PN aaap ¢ i
RIS AL BULIAMD) S TRIPPUEYS S5ON THOMINE atusuadie | d!.!a_-..é!____in:’:-i..ﬂi
im0y #umgs pue ...._faupﬂﬂtnf 3 |3 302000 (UG 9003 pus Snurulp weaskeos | aonoo'Ts i 52 |wzres shilE sjuang ry B EIER Y W S5 oyl bty B ey} LET R TPURIEAL B0 00 | S2IRTAOT
ot v Un!:-.?_ U R0 L LT ([, RTUARRGE "B O e R - pURY
pum sunTia) papind ) T prar e Uy o i) Anaepog pur el
IEEEEY jO @ rlu._.on_:_ 1 AT 07 LPURTBNAL AN wOq Syl O did) P @ uj eledoeled g tpeepngg
FAAMOFR LIV QUM CICEN WL MOV 0 il pUTsEpL R
A P R e i) T s e s pur YA J0 $1a 00 ba e s
saabarnd s 1j10p Baapa-isgoad pus ‘uorispeid uoresesgn BUDiRsE MM ) pus sne b b B M
pue ‘uniami usril e uses) e siuapngs ey papnd inon | seuayl prumstsie pue niegis | GRRees BB " n BrilE L] ey wRAAD A TRT A ERA YRR HEY SOR] W IR SIOEINT SYE | STURTT
PHPO-IPAL 0 SR8 FEay ) BUIIAULGD ‘MOg BTEM 0 WELA) PO LIBLLE |0 TS SY) suaso o WA ISR, 10 W01 3G Byt
[y s o Serp P o L) wtnodl jee v Buppiog okl et us-apuey Gnosy eoloalp
sl pum TSI Saasu e ani aiopne o] sy AaEea SO0 L TN B SRR EM Siuennig
TR0 RS AP 5 MUICET 0 OIS RIPAITL Wi Be0y JaTi0) pur
TS IDMLIEAL PUP EALEETE] ORI W0 [EAITSUO [HA- PR ) ST ARNOTS PUT AN D
(i1 FIUAPPGE ‘uoyidioyred us-spumy NG | AILPALILIGD OO A0 BUL UM UL Jagee pur
Wil BAZIRU U3 EEERLLDGU] IRUT e (U P Y TR0 UL S 0w O RN . ’ anany s, Jayea ¢ Buisoen
i1 s sychas B pune "ol ey w B “repsecy aucouor ey 00 v | DOROOIS | o | MmL )€ WLIE | MimagE) | TeorMUS) FOSISE | O (el RSN | slos winninn s | oD
sy pajned #a) e JURspe- NI BANEU [0 AnEA $§) FET NRASENG Jaine Inoge
U 03 URRAFS S5|ASRIRAN ¥ HiNG pee ulisop jae ‘0no ABoyaad Syl Ag papind - s sioapnig
I I L I LG T L T T
e e uapnys pdjey paeked sl Sene sKiEm oM af 1jdaceas s pur Tussuiios
Foppaimod Ag PRIl BT Sy Linbu) AEu T e mirang R o
Temos-ussaid u uapnis SBEU ST FLLHIEM ) S B SIEDOd moy PaEReun Ay g AU 5 s
03 USRS IR0} -0 6 INCULL AP pue AIURAGn aropies g Lepeid py umegod paemo | ETES6S EUESE% oal | gt 4 SLLTE | eegED e ] Mnumi GE Aapjdusiin | dinersiig R Aoy Pesioj] UBIIAKL] PUF SaMa SIS | E
BA0ial 00 Buaghk padsa usiy Bigs dnosa) ulmap pus Alaeua a0 esesadl sapem A sod
i 3 R Prirg v SSapRed )i A R Rm puk woiegod S sRmasal o
Penacy BEUALE NILS ey linoayd are g0 aouricdan pue ssacd syl aitlineau) g tauapnig
B UnEInG
P RO S 0 10y FUILIES S0-Npery W SIuaprs BuiBrius dasroe anim Appgroodsas)
A e e ot o e e s ] s | s | [ it || e, | rosmint | i b b |3
!-u\ —__.!f...TEul-_ Ay ) Topif) TR AARO0E |E30) LOOnG P I SAEEU0D
“hupEnk i Eﬁﬂﬂil% an. .-_i.-_._!__j.]:ln-t“ ﬁm
gl puw iyl ._t_..n___ta.__._i_u!s-o 1 Buppuegtaepun adaag o ue A3 ) g
paloid ALY ELATRIS R AR (30 _u._i.r._._u:wu-_.-! oy sayysed Anspuag Fumu)) Ag wesasge
AR ueni Eidiill LA L | L Fa W
T e i e v e vt sl e | e [ || 4 i, | vomosn s | s | W | g S | Y8
G PAALTIN [R50 PUR pd B gams—sin s Ayjent sapem moy apelisasu) pue uoiieajiand sies
PPT INOGE wiesy (s vuapus el Bupeus po veesosd sys sBnoug ap) bpkes 03 ALY Snm
IULDD TR W e oo iy salleiiie i 1agieyg @ o AR gL
AL & m A iz ap TRRIPEY PN ooy ausgi) ey a3y padoay m

a7-SZOT Ad JO} Panasay suopedyddy eSS UoHEINPT JE1EA - S31EM, Jaddn




nr UHA [0 SO JBILgy e ra
AP ST BAIFEUGO PRI S(see myee asnpal o shew ienped Bupaeoiuouwsp g (hiasasag agie
E.vﬂa!ﬂ:-ﬂ!i!&%!’-ﬂi-.:-ﬂﬂ!!% S{I| “@ERAE 10 S| ey

U] MO D) IRV [N a4 Sy) BUiMOpE AR § uD peony g0 je WS sy S30d
1=£I_:=.E..E :E_sE-a.E._ © G 10y 203 8 ppng pue UBsp s Tieepnig

LT "Iy UDRNT W OLLD

APPYA SR pRLLAL
Aansrny e

YT e

e Benjoos

SEFTEMT

POyl jususead)

IR TR R o o T BRI EROT MOU PUT UDTIRELL

PG BIUSHE BUY ‘U0 FEETELE ST e TR :i_n!ﬂ__.i_-_ “hpngs syl yinang

AgjEn -;Ej i) IR M Ay &P RAS ] LR FUE ELD Q)M U0 EFUSLEI0E uo-tpuRy

wauquaaT iaekard sqg useiRL ERE PUR diogeg (G00) WS pRyOIR (0 PUR Bl FIae

"y ey o g ‘Sesdhuies sigem -u.u_-.._.n.u PR iy ui..lE_._.a_-__-.k!tu.-I__:._.
L 4 e ] yajps i B e P EanfIuTn g 1

TOOESS

IODESE 5 e L pesuiEOy ey UCE T W QLT

PRI SR LA
sy

Euiy [aFy A

Bupsay
SEBURATISE T HHEEILE] ST

SCALEST | &

RS LBy P ST 13310 NG PUR TUDTAIU0 PNH)-DADIS dogEAaD AINS0U [0

U IR SEATUR PUR B30 A TRRPN S SR | pus iUy KoM 0 o)
-y BN | FHON IR EHIRISTUOS b Anp1dige BUrEs E»ﬂ!iﬂln,;ﬁ:lt_
a0t SeyL Uspsds Bpasiduand @ sapnisus 1eload a1 SUBAL UOERAR LIP § PUN AN PRsiiral
-._____..d._i..-ﬂ-._.n!f CATER pUd B3 or Aphil oy e Buiii b Joopif U &FAK mM T eEpngg

00'000°TS

GOTON'TS L] g ¥ I6L16 any padieyy 3 10TE

o]
PPN Masuagig

SR MDY

i - g
e |5 AP TAUSEH

AU | AR FaR JABRAR LB |0 SR LS 3] 0 VU Ul
!E§i1E§§§ D) A UoCRpURY S L SR EUe R pue
Beaaiys pue tesaud nuserlio o Asiap s e
b Buizdgree par Juiy Ty A S HOOFOUNIL FD PROM USEER a1
Bandea o1 sdomous ¥ __!:IEEEE-_EIEEEEE.E IO M RSN

ooon‘Ts

Eost'ts 0Lt | usEE ¥ TRLLE

WY WRENEED 7] B0

R 4] EUL A,

qE sainEnangy

SEFIESOT | &

R T LT
!.Tuc:n.u_._ TR0 LLEDT PUE ENESICEI 08 S0 FIFP ST [UE 1SHI0D [[IW KUSpes,
) SIS U JRASIVUDD EES AR10 138 TUTTELSUCAEIE] S TN (IS,

My ey
LTS O Puy

IEE__EEEE_B il A PN ULOEUED fi% Uapiel
B waanpad R LA SEYL [ T LT SR O el
....Eﬂ.-..ﬂn!u...lﬁ!i:-!!.ﬂu&tn JuauELLed B SIRssda pur ‘Dhapsad ullsep g seepngg

DOrooo T L Ay paxaw 3 ToTE

L B ]
HPPY BAIUSI0H

F D ML B A,
i AR i

stfenion

o japeug a1 pue 'd A | 1 sl jaire 0 Bupariiepun

TP adand asg) i-_.g._v:nj!x .n-_:.lu.ll._s.n_u!_::iul miEam | as o
1B EIUBPIS “TPSRASOES PUR VRIS B0-Spoiy YRR ] ST DS pUT 581 ssnoyuamll syp sy sy
PEIUBLITOIALE O BN U0 T PUE #2403 jaEs 341 A0jdus o) 1N AMDIraueg)) Me) B S50 mW SRR

Lokl i

WY MaASTD [5G

0035 SOYLE 0] 1L

hag ey

N SRR yErpds Py T pUTH

S&foLfon | s

I P dapem o Buypermesmin BuileBua Yling e put UorRaiingo Thpcno dejousied o)
TR AU BYT U1 S PUR FRELEGM FI0SGIE IR M0 IR [ RN remsnuad
Eisaaiségﬂn YIS STUALLISCNR LTI, TR BATTIT e

SEa565

YNy Tjdave0 ¥ Eaﬂilv._ “spyrig __!._._!-.E.Eu.- I..l Py B g

L8 a1 Hag £ By ARAOE) TG

ORI, O T 3 15

dacaa U

N SIEN, YVORS R pUTH

S&fEfol

L

W e pun
‘Aaroue s
SquAEEE djai e 30y T Burgis pue ‘caggng Bujyxes Seiem o io
WP [ U T e i Beioyhs ULy
EInpea 01 Wy ] s el medeioan jruoiinyg oyl mn g

FERISD ® DU -u!.!—’_.
AN § e

#is BusBueips agg snes

O £RES

oy lgiasag 1EGS

1005 SOy BT 15

e JLE]

L
Wy apyitedian rucney

Stfocfor | €

LRSI GET

i by Pudedun ! Vil ey (o U Reaun Hekap
B pue .v..a_ Ujy] pEMLEY F—n::u—-.-.u.ﬂ!.—i.ll.._. nﬁt!i;iiwi.likl

RS MR LIS I ABU “Iothirge im) PUR ‘uonaype ‘uorayos Reakbngl Aa Tishisiades

E-E!E’t&!i itiulqi...:ﬂ.-.n "W O R R0 il ) Ra0pl e JuapnIg|

1OCRYE HEHIED N 5

AR Uy

Va0 INLLE

SEfeEson

(4

d miji 1l LA iwe sy g Agreoiin Baiaging sy e
prortiymn puw ‘uckiEAingE TujpUTTAsEUN LY NN Dl sy) 1 Pnyh AN

I.ilﬁ:ir SFHPNTE Eosoud Bupn puts e I._g L

01965

mﬁghiniliuﬂziﬂ.ﬁgzﬁl ... %5.11

E:EFEIE!E!—ESEE%E.; ¥ BN R uapnag)

aRLTE day mpduia) Wy A 155

PO TS MEMIED N 1

heag oy

OQry eoum
sgimaph Alaucyaerg (radig

sEhazfor

L1

_ ARiEH ‘Ul o
i syenadde priLs s Pusdjsy pun
1afoud 31| TUDESROAR PRIoM-(#A1 O} daseal #ﬂ YT I [ TYUSNNTE (IS0, B o sapdoid

g B P TR ARrn (RISl win ) Tusopdn b Vi rden w0-§ Py BAEHEUY YEnoay

Ty (eni Annin s

ERTRES 11 Rig it ORETE | kit s g RO 155

et YOI ST 1

T - P 0§ WY e
Jaira B WVAES BIE9ARITE

Sfocion

a1

Amusing

Eiﬂi!i:ﬂi!’lﬁn-f!ﬂ-ﬂit;;!ﬁﬁl L N ViuepRg

susprg
jeraL
e spein

ey Jeddy

a1 akig

97-GT0T Ad 40§ panianay suonedrddy JUBLD UDIEINET JEE, - J3IEMp Jaddn




TRUTREITT PUP ek in AU

A 0TI R 0 UDEDASIE adap 1 uied Fuapns pouw aqiury £ oju rep
oerEge Busisn iy ‘#_..Iu....-au.ﬁ_u!__-.i_.-.:__u s oS i PUETLEERN PUR TWaTLs Jaiem ut

...E_.._..q.ﬂ ‘weaacid 51

R13etliis wruny ARk ol |r 8oy M pris Bupdiay 10 2 uan sasiqn pauyap
tln_u..u.‘w-n_!._.‘ II L 3 UL Y P R LA O T RS SeyTig LD d) TR
srimsue) wen) Bunea [ ] S st arh frok) [k U B s aiopde Ajadi) e e

1L mEp jenydrdoda; alutiliilﬂli 1A o o by
Ay o) ARoyoey ) u_ﬂ_._.__._n_ F Bupsm A 31090 PAPLATIE UD-SpURY up seapnys salelua oefad syl

Episagehia aangn Busid

LU N SR SR PUJELSTE PUE Aoy e s ainydes o) AluRiioddo )|

LRI Pl e Ui P A UaTEAR Nuesd enbe By | UOTERAMSB0T

pum ihar iigr i apdusees apgitue & Buimecod agi e ve 1 TURE moy PR S0
EIE!..JET-.__' WL ERDO R Vien g sngare kel uo-apum) ] Tuiey suciipes)
ESEE- Eia!ziﬂluﬂgﬂu iyt aidjuy pus ABEn R A pERd jage
0L i AR | I!_-Ei: 4 UDIEINPOIT POl 3EPUIRISTR JIRISUWCRIAN 01 pa uapsred pus

denbe prosdgemitng ayg Bean Asoyeiogey s @ sqea gism srespnyg

ot Buyusg :_1!.-

S hii g 00'560°T% ost Wezg ¥ OGLTE | Wi deaay | OIS TERUERG A STOT

07 Maur

Oo0e'TE 0TS T e L DGLTE WAL TEEAN “BAN WA, T PTY

BigFjan RliTy

WA

1 @0 pur .—.....__..E 3 ) ) AU POD) VEIPPD e W Ay aanpoid i oo d
0 Ay upER GIUBRAGE VT [EUCTIDUIS-{FO0 PUR SR o} BEeodys Bujssecy oue sy ‘sojanpod)
dau podan pue =r=E-__.REl.._I.__¥n.n umpd o) sejem SIRURLL AUSNNRE 0] Mo TjuapT
gt s Mg HanEns s T ssnay b By n e us Yoy Buiade uoaeiun dup Burn
i‘uﬂi!irgliii PR A S RN (RG] M Teshng

00000'1E DODOD°LS osT YEEdl T TELTE o 1 VU PNy sy RETOT

TR Py

THIFKIAD JALTA I
I B SO

iuuﬂaii_ ap A i}?bi]&iad el kil
DI P uE Pusp BANFUS YRR U B30 i:_s.zx._..l_

Eu.n-ﬂ-hn!_u.ﬁiﬁ.._!! 1YL ‘ues3epand pooy & e

=R,

| yamard purd pue !35!._.__:5.5-!!._._ _u._.n.. Jn yueFa)

___._!:!._._. ...u___-ﬂE.-_i._i h.!._-_.nl i e dip pup “ynis eodaios Burin ol ipd pus Gaad
AIFES LD Ju -.-!Ua.u.:_!:u._ Bujpurpd AQ UODIED) S TASEAS 18EUA0H ) Perden g teepnig

DOess O OS 008 Wik ¥ IGLIE  |WSADDIEAM, | CRAY PRI 7] TOIT

AU Rl UG s Pl 18 URB |5 SR Loy i) |0 T e Bujpmucud
Spgm dark s Py 105 S P LSO USRS ALARSE UG- SPURY S SARUE XU pen
“useEgsitape FIFD umareasgn uy v g velifuaim pue st waneelin o Ariaap sy dusa
jrow. gy, ‘vitugpoug syt Bupajrar pur Fuppapeys Tessegn AG g SOCTEIT |0 Py Eapnn sl
DS B, O00TEINA I AR SE0IN0T | WO SApEUIEY MRM SURAIPEE DUR D300 B SEUEpNTS

|

PUE “HHIRIOGHI0 32

Ll R R TLEY RN o

gy l-nn__iunla._._-ﬁiz._u!u:.lu-._nl!_ﬂ it peodoutl pud Njapous pui Leiod ajees
fﬁil:‘ngank&r!?ﬂnﬂ IO ey BUDjE a0 e s ) SERgUILT ‘EiNEm po)
| il e RS ‘U EnpDd § 'l..:.:.o!.!.._.ﬁu.l_t_._ 1] per RaInEEISEa Barm) w0l aEEliEaau) e TTuapnag|

HBARG M Ao e iy i FL
i Burdjanyg TRRpUTT SSON _.tt.__a!_ sl un-gpusy

o00en'tE TEoRlTd BT | TR ¥ [HRLES. | Wesh0l JERN | Ay SOEREE) F EOST

o ey upAO T EERA

= g

O00FGS DOOiGS & s L] BOLIE W4 LN S PN SRER N

TR PR (WUl GaITE [y o0,

e -.i;_ﬂ..‘t‘!._i-ﬁ.;é WA ARG IR B S B

Bupsp ungegmp o ginou sen

‘gl i) i OIS BUDI0Y AT 3 A e papnd ayp Aujenb s ST 0 AEEW U
Faynead sy e T._a._r.;v [ A U PaURSD B I SUBPLOG PU aesedess o yifljore )
wh D EULEIEo Aand o0 R Jron ® ag pae alep e daepng

FEsTey "l Hua 4 ousuEds wo-pey wiel sguapnys ‘smaap syl B pue Buigean)
_..n-ﬂ-i.._.-ﬂ-i pad ap in Buirinnoos euamoys ayj) s Arplaaes Bujmg paussuos GEE6S s L ina z RLiTE aﬂ e Ll T

=5 Uy sElaM Ay VEREERUED Dk du) MO JEERM 220350 10y Sachd BeraBiapad pue ‘wyee Roeuedas)

“WiaTEAs UOTIRIL S E.T!:-Eirl.il%;z.ilf TR HTTETTE

|

LGRS JEUSLSHISALD PUF LDV AL |

i pediing iu%-ii‘:-.i A U P RN "L | R A JNOGE LB

fuaprn juBsustea fay ) lnauig) [T e L T LI LEL R b TPLIE TR i
sl SRS TN P i PTRITS NS r | e z 00its | protseoy | sy womons N o7 RN

auamy Ay

97-5707 A4 40§ panasay suonedddy JUBIS U|IEINPT JAIEA, - 1818 Jaddn

iy AN BRg poR Akl iEuangy

10 BRO UL LEETM, P RS




9, (a)
Press Releases and News Articles

REDISTRICTING

California Republicans sue to block Prop.
50

Attorneys allege ballot measure violates 14th, 15th
amendments

Workers sort mail-in ballots at the Los Angeles County Ballot Processing Center in the

== LT LIS

City of Industry on Tuesday. California GOP on Wednesday filed suit to block newly
approved congressional maps. Keith Birmingham — staff photographe

BY LINH TAT

LTAT@SCNG.COM

California Republicans aren’t taking Tuesday's landslide victory for redistricting sitting
down, instead announcing the morning after the statewide special election that they have
filed a federal lawsuit to challenge Proposition 50.



They are seeking a court injunction to block the voter-approved gerrymandered maps from
being used for the 2026 congressional midterm elections while the case is heard since,
attorneys for the plaintiff said, candidates for U.S. House seats must know in a matter of
weeks which maps they'll be running under.

In announcing their lawsuit on Wednesday, attorneys alleged the ballot measure violates the
14th and 15th amendments by unconstitutionally gerrvmandering congressional districts to
favor one race.

Although the U.S. Supreme Court has in the past permitted gerrymandered maps in limited
instances to protect minority voters under the Voting Rights Act, the attorneys said there was
no proof that gerrymandering to favor Hispanics, in the case of Proposition 50, was
necessary.

Aside from the California Republican Party, Central Valley Assemblymember David Tangipa
and 18 California voters are parties to the lawsuit. It named as defendants Gov. Gavin
Newsom, who pushed for Proposition 50, as well as California Secretary of State Shirley
Weber.

“The fight for California has just begun,” Tangipa, the lead plaintiff, said during a news
conference.

As the first Polynesian elected to the California Legislature, Tangipa said he appreciates the
diversity in the state.

“What we have seen with Prop. 50, these maps, they are completely diminishing the voices
of other groups” to benefit certain groups, he said.

“This lawsuit’s about fair and equal representation for every Californian, no matter the
color of your skin,” said Corrin Rankin, chair of the California Republican Party.

The governor’s office, in a brief statement after the lawsuit was announced, said it hadn't
reviewed the complaint.

“But if it's from the California Republican Party and (U.S. Department of Justice Assistant
Attorney General) Harmeet Dhillon's law firm, it's going to fail,” said Brandon Richards, a
spokesperson for Newsom's office. He added: “Good luck, losers.”

Almost immediately after polls closed Tuesday, the special election was called in favor of
Proposition 50, a resounding victory for Newsom and the effort to increase safe Democratic
House seats in California.

The measure had a solid lead statewide, according to unofficial election results posted early
Wednesday by the secretary of state’s office. There are still ballots left to count, though the



final results likely won't change significantly. The secretary of state has until Dec. 12 to
certify the election results.

Local elections offices were also reporting majority voter support for the ballot measure in
their counties, based on unofficial vote counts posted on their websites Wednesday
morning.

That includes Los Angeles County and Orange County, as well as in the Inland Empire,
where, although the majority of voters chose President Donald Trump in last year's election,
Proposition 50 was passing in both Riverside County and San Bernardino County.

Proposition 50 was largely viewed as a referendum on Trump, and supporters of the
measure have said it is meant to counter similar gerrymandering plans in other states that
would benefit Republicans in the 2026 midterm elections.

The problem, said Mike Columbo, an attorney with the Dhillon Law Group, which filed the
lawsuit, is that Democrats who drew the Proposition 50 maps, as well as members of the
California Legislature, have acknowledged the new maps would increase the power of
Latino voters.

“When states racially gerrymander their voting districts, the Supreme Court has permitted a
limited exception to the Constitution,” Columbo said. “That exception requires, among
other things, that the favored voters are a minority whose preferred candidates cannot get
elected because of the votes of another majority race.

“Hispanics make up the most voters in the state. ... Hispanics have had fantastic success in
electing candidates of their choice. Accordingly, California cannot meet this exception,”
Columbo said.

Of note, the Dhillon Law Group was founded by Harmeet Dhillon, who is now an assistant
attorney general in the civil rights division at the U.S Department of Justice. Dhillon
stepped down from her role at the law firm in April to work for the Justice Department.

Wednesday's lawsuit — funded by the National Republican Congressional Committee,
according to speakers at the news conference — may not be the only legal challenge to
California’s election results.

On Election Day, Trump, who had largely stayed away from campaigning against the
measure, claimed without evidence that the election was rigged and hinted at a legal
challenge.

“The Unconstitutional Redistricting Vote in California is a GIANT SCAM in that the entire
process, in particular the Voting itself, is RIGGED. All ‘Mail-In" Ballots, where the
Republicans in that State are ‘Shut Out,’ is under very serious legal and criminal review.
STAY TUNED!" Trump wrote on his Truth Social account.



The California secretary of state responded by calling the president’s post “another baseless
claim.”

Meanwhile, House Speaker Mike Johnson, R-Louisiana, decried Proposition 50 on
Wednesday, calling it “a sign of desperation” by the Democratic Party.

“They had to trample over their own independent redistricting commission. ... Itwas a
game to try to rig the election — as if you could gerrymander California anymore,” he said,
noting that 43 of California’s 52 congressional districts are already held by Democrats.

“It’s just a blatant example of Gavin Newsom'’s immoral leadership,” Johnson said.

This week was not the first time California Republicans have fought Democrats’ redistricting
effort in court.

In August, Republican legislators filed a petition seeking a court order to halt Democrats’
attempt to enact new, partisan congressional maps in California for the next three elections.

Aweek after the California Supreme Court denied that petition, the GOP legislators filed
another petition in hopes of blocking Proposition 50 from appearing on the Nov. 4 ballot.
The same court rejected the second petition as well.



WATER

‘Emerging threat’: An invasive species is upending life in
the Delta, with no help on the way

o NOVEMBER 4, 2025

Republish

An underwater view of golden mussels growing on a dock at a Delta boatyard in Stockton on Oct. 23, 2025, Photo by Fred Greaves for CalMatters

IN SUMMARY

One year after the discovery that golden mussels had invaded the Delta, thick colonies coat boats and piers and
threaten water supplies for cities and farms. Yet the state has no specific funding or plans to tackle harms in the
heart of the invasion.

Spurts of goo oozed between Jeff Wingfield's fingers as he methodically crushed a handful of golden mussels,
popping the shells of the tiny invaders like bubblewrap.

“You can just push vour way right through them.” said Wingfield from the dock where he stood at the Port of
Stockton, looking down at the thimble-sized debris in his palm.

Last October, a couple of miles down the Stockton Deepwater Shipping Channel, state water managers first
discovered that golden mussels had invaded North America.

Seeing how fast they’ve multiplied in the last yvear “was like a gut punch,” said Wingfield, a deputy director at
the port.



The mussels are infamous for voracious appetites that fuel their rapid growth. Now, state and local water

managers are battling to keep golden mussels from reaching uninfested lakes and reservoirs. They're

racing to keep them from damaging the pumping facilities that send Delta water to farms and cities in
Central and Southern California.

But here, in the web of waterways where the Sacramento and San Joaquin Rivers meet, a new reality is
setting in. Thick colonies of the mussels already coat boats and piers and threaten water supplies for cities
and farms.

In the urgency to stop the spread, state agencies have prioritized protecting the rest of the state from the
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, over protecting the Delta itself. Residents and local leaders feel overlooked.
And they fear that the stigma of a golden mussel infestation will drive visitors and boaters away from one of

the country’s largest estuaries.

“That’s almost like bringing bedbugs or something back from a trip overseas,” Wingfield said. “If you've

been in the Delta now, it’s like you've been exposed.”

. iy

Sampling plates hauled from the water at the Port of Stockton were completely encrusted with mussels on Oct. 23, 2025, The plates are used to track the

golden mussel invasion, Photo by Fred Greaves for CalMatters



The economic consequences are looming large. Invasive mussel and clam species cost an estimated $1.6
billion every year, largely in North America — costs overwhelmingly counted in damage to business and
infrastructure; rather than management or prevention.

“We're just getting started,” said Ted Grosholz, a professor emeritus with the UC Davis Coastal and Marine
Sciences Institute. “As the populations grow, the problems will grow.”

A Delta scourge, one year in

The Delta is home to nearly three quarters of a million people, half a million acres of farmland, threatened
and endangered fish species — and now, the golden mussel.

Native to China and Southeast Asia, the mussel is suspected to have slipped in on a commercial ship, past
long-delayed shipping rules aimed at keeping out invaders.

Now, the abundant mollusk is invading critical infrastructure.

The Contra Costa Water District reports golden mussels in multiple parts of its system. And in Stockton, the
heart of the invasion, the municipal utilities department found golden mussels on an oil containment boom
near their intakes.

Travis Small, deputy director of water resources at the department, said he’s concerned about the raw water
pipeline that transports Delta water to their treatment plant, and plans to hire a diver to inspect the utility’s fish
screens and pump well. He calls the rapid spread “worrisome.”

The mussels have even started appearing on irrigation siphons that pipe Delta water onto farmland. Though
the San Joaquin County Farm Bureau and Delta irrigation districts haven’t reported clogged pipes, vet, Keith
Lyons, a diver who inspects underwater equipment, said that he’s already seeing the mussels on them.

One siphon, he said, was so thickly encrusted that the mussels piled two inches deep, both inside and out.

“There’s a lot. A heck of a lot,” Lyons said. *I'm worried for the farmers. There’s no quick answer. There’s no
Roundup.”



s ".;-':."T‘n-"'"'-l:.'_!_!ﬂ_".‘__:- i

An aerial view of the San Joaguin River and the adjacent farmland in Stockton, Oct. 23, 2025. The invasive golden mussel threatens boats, marinas and
water supplies for cities and farms. Photo by Fred Greaves for CalMatters

Dennis Pelucca, a pest control advisor, also spotted mussels on the siphons for Rindge Tract, an island west of
Stockton, to irrigate crops.

So many mussels were hanging off the outside of the pipe, it looked like a beard, he said. On the inside, “if it
gets to the point like arteries getting clogged up with cholesterol, then that’s what you’'re going to be dealing
with. It will plug them up.”

The consequences could be devastating for farming, said Christopher Neudeck, president of the civil
engineering firm Kjeldsen. Sinnock & Neudeck and a district engineer for many of the Delta islands. The
region produces dozens of different crops, and drives more than $4.6 billion in agricultural output.

“If (the siphons) plug up, we're going to lose billions of dollars worth of agricultural production.” Neudeck
said. *We know it's become extremely problematic. But nothing has really been done. We're just in a holding
pattern, waiting to let the second shoe drop.”



Wingfield, too, has been grappling with the invasive mussels at the Port of Stockton for the past year. He's
worried they could clog intakes for vital water systems. including an aerator that maintains legally required

oxygen levels in the shipping channel.

Standing on the dock, Winglield’s colleague Steven Bender hauled sampling plates from the water, deployed
to help staff track the invasion.

The bottom had been stripped clean of mussels at the end of the summer, but by October was again
completely encrusted. Mussels grew on top of mussels.

Bender ripped a handful away from the plates, with a sound like velcro tearing.

No help arriving

For all the emerging and anticipated consequences of the invasion, the state has no specific funding or plans to
tackle harms in the Delta.

California lawmakers allocated $20 million in Proposition 4 funds this vear to fight off golden and other
invasive mussels statewide. But according to the Department of Fish and Wildlife, none of it is set aside to
protect the Delta or help it adapt.

Other pots of money, like the department’s Boating Access Grant Program, could in theory help fund
eligible projects to combat the golden mussel in the Delta, but they aren’t specifically designated for that
purpose.

Assemblymember Rhodesia Ransom. a Democrat from Stockton, called the $20 million an initial
investment and said the legislature’s Delta Caucus is looking at what more its members can do. She called for
federal help.

“These things came clearly from another region, another country — and that means all of our waterways are
at risk.” Ransom said, calling the mussels a “serious emerging threat™ to farms, water supplies, and recreation.



_J

Port of Stockton employee Steven Bender inspects equipment used to aerate water at the Port of Stockton on Oct, 23, 2025. Golden mussels spread

rapidly and can damage pipes and pumping equipment, leading to costly repairs. Photo by Fred Greaves for CalMatters

But Rep. Josh Harder’s federal legislation aimed at combating the invasion in the Delta has stalled.

“It’s tough to get bills from California passed in this Congress,” said Harder, the Democrat representing San
Joaquin and parts of Stanislaus and Contra Costa counties who introduced the bill. *This shouldn’t be a
partisan issue.”

As Gov. Gavin Newsom pushes for a $20 billion tunnel to send more Delta water to farms and cities in
Central and Southern California, the mussel adds to residents’ growing sense that the Delta is under siege —

seen more as a conduit for water than as a place with its own vibrant ecosystems, cultures and farms to
protect.

“We do feel abandoned,” said Brett Baker, a water lawyer and sixth-generation farmer in the region. “If you
were expecting help from the state, you'd be foolish — because at the same time this is happening, they re
proceeding through with the (tunnel) proceedings to basically eviscerate the Delta.”



A silver bullet?

In the absence of state or federal help, some still hold out hope that something, someday might eradicate the

mussels from the Delta.

A few miles away from the Port, at the Delta Marine Yacht Center boatyard, Bob Parsons peered at the
dripping undercarriage of the work barge he’d hauled from the water.

Back in March, he’d covered each pontoon with a different type of paint — an experiment to see which was
better at preventing the buildup of aquatic hangers-on, like algae. Tiny shells jutted from both pontoons seven
months later.

*“This is such a small amount in comparison to what I've been seeing.” Parsons said.

An underwater view of a rope attached to sampling plates coverad with golden mussels at the Port of Stockton on Oct. 23, 2025, Photo by Fred Greaves

for CalMatters



Parsons is hoping for a silver bullet, but scientists agree that one isn’t coming. The invasion is already too
established, and the Delta too complex.

Still, he like many others, has pinned at least some of his hopes on a compound being developed by the
[nvasive Species Corporation, a Davis-based start-up founded by scientist and entrepreneur Pamela Marrone.

The product, Zequanox, is already used to combat other invasive mussels, like the species that have taken
hold in the Great Lakes and parts of Southern California. Marrone’s team is optimizing it for the golden
mussel. as well.

Marrone cautions that controlling mussels in pipes. the inner workings of boats and other water infrastructure
is doable. But eliminating mussels from the Delta “is not likely feasible or cost effective.”

Without a Delta-wide fix, boaters are grasping for anything they can get their hands on — like special paints,
or using ultrasonic sound waves to make their vessels inhospitable to the invaders.

In the meantime, Parson’s team is ripping hundreds of pounds off their hulls. And a sense of futility is
creeping across waterfronts and docks.

A community at stake

On a warm evening in October, 85-year-old Gene Beley walked down J dock at the Village West Marina and
Resort in Stockton. A great egret followed, picking its way down the walkway in the slanting light, looking for
dinner.

J dock has become Beley’s community in the year since his wife passed away. “These are all my neighbors,”
Beley said, passing the other boats belonging to a bartender, a contractor, a tech executive. “A lot of times,
like Friday or Saturday nights. you’ll see a group right here. solving the world’s problems.”



First: Fred \Vijsma, owner of Fred’s Yacht Service, pulls golden mussels from the underside of his dinghy. Last: Fred Vijsma holds a coffee can

full of golden mussel shells scraped from his dinghy at the Village West Marina and Resort in Stockton on Oct. 23, 2025. Photos by Fred Greaves
for CalMatters

His friend of 20 years, 75-year-old boat mechanic Fred Vijsma, keeps his yacht just a couple of slips down.
Golden mussels clog the thruster and decorate the underside of his dinghies.

Vijsma has been waging a private war against the tiny invaders. He keeps the mussels he’s scraped ofl his
dinghy in a coffee can, and kills them with salt — an act part science, part vengeance. The smell of the dead
mussels, even in the open air, was overpowering. And his worry about how the mussels will harm this region,
and his friends, was palpable.

“In just the short period of time that we’ve had these mussels, it’s totally devastating,” Vijsma said. *What do
we do? How do we fix this? We don’t want to leave our boats.”

2025 CalMatters



COURTHOUSE NEWS: Appeals court paves way for divisive
California water tunnel

ﬁ mavensnotebook.comf2025/10/2 1/counhousa-naws-appeals-court-paves-way-for-divisive-california-wates-funnalf

Dalta Conveyance Pmu Courthause News Service October 21, 2025 October 21, 2025

"."‘.'—' —

== -'-'i'.l_"'_c- T g, i

Geotechnical work can now begin on a proposed $20 billion tunnel that would help send water from
the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta southward to drier parts of the Golden State.

By Hillel Aron, Courthouse News Service

A controversial proposal to build a 14-mile underground tunnel to transport water from Northern California
southward got a boost from the state Court of Appeals, which ruled that preliminary work can begin on the
project.

Last year, a judge in Sacramento County agreed with a collection of counties, water districts, environmental
groups and native tribes seeking to stop the Delta Conveyance Project. The judge found that
preconstruction geotechnical work had to be certified by a state agency before it could begin, and issued a
preliminary injunction preventing that work from moving forward.

But on Friday, a three-judge panel from the state appellate court reversed that ruling.

The $20 billion Delta Conveyance Project is only the latest iteration of a proposal, sought by California
governors and assorted water officials since the 1960s, to move water from the Sacramento River down to
the more arid parts of the state. Currently, the state water project has roughly 700 miles of canals, which



use an array of pumps to distribute the water further south for agriculture and drinking. Supporters of the
Delta Conveyance Project say it would modernize the water network, save electricity and capture much
more water than the current system is capable of.

Most of the local politicians in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta region oppose the project, saying it would
effectively steal their water and damage the local environment. They also say it's costly and unnecessary.
Last month, the Legislature stalled a proposal by Governor Gavin Newsom to fast-track the conveyance
project.

Still, the Department of Water Resources had hoped to prepare for the project, including testing the soil and
groundwater. But plaintiffs in 10 related lawsuits challenging the project under the state’s Environmental
Quality Act, or CEQA, asked a judge to issue a preliminary injunction blocking the work, arguing that it
needed its own separate certification under a 2009 law, the Delta Reform Act.

Superior Court Judge Stephen Acquisto agreed. "Boring holes 250-feet deep and digging trenches 1,000-
feet long, 20-feet deep and 3-feet wide, for example, certainly appear to be the type of activity that would
cause 'physical change in the environment.”

In reversing that ruling, Justice Louis Mauro wrote: “The Delta Reform Act does not require DWR to submit
a certification of consistency before engaging in preconstruction geotechnical work."

The case is now remanded back to the lower court. Although the water tunnel faces stiff challenges,
including a lack of funding and an arduous gauntlet of environmental review, the preliminary geotechnical
work can recommence.



PRESS RELEASE: Governor advances Delta Conveyance Project
through two key milestones

== mavensnotebook.comi2025/1 0V 24/press-releasa-governor-advances-delta-conveyance-projact-through-two-kay-milastones!

Delta Conveyance Projact Office of Govemor Gavin Newsom Oclober 24, 2025 October 24, 2025

Press release from Governor Gavin Newsom:

Governor Gavin Newsom announced two recent key victories to advance the Delta Conveyance Project —
a critical infrastructure project to safeguard California’'s water supplies amid a hotter, drier future. The
administration secured a court decision reversing a preliminary injunction that was previously blocking pre-
construction geotechnical work. Additionally, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has
submitted a certification of consistency for the broader project to the Delta Stewardship Council (DSC).
These victories help the Delta Conveyance Project move forward in compliance with the Delta Reform Act
— the state law that creates a regulatory framework to protect both the Sacramento-San Joaquin River
Delta ecosystem and a reliable statewide water supply.

“California must quickly complete the Delta Conveyance Project to protect our state's water supplies,” said
Governor Newsom. “No piece of infrastructure is more fundamental to our water supply and economic
success. This is the most effective strategy to ensure that the state can continue to deliver water for
Californians in future hotter, drier, and more extreme conditions. Enough delays, we must quickly move
forward to protect Californians’ water supplies, and we look forward to completing this project sooner rather
than later.”



Fighting for California’s water infrastructure

California is expected to lose 10% of its water supply due to hotter and drier conditions, threatening the
water supply for millions of Californians — and the reliability of the State Water Project could be reduced as
floods. And California’s 60-year-old water infrastructure is not built to respond to these climate impacts. The
Delta Conveyance Project will help offset and recover these future climate-driven water losses, and yet, it
has been plagued by delays and red tape.

The Delta Conveyance Project would expand the state’s ability to improve water supply reliability, while also
maintaining fishery and water quality protections. During atmospheric rivers last year, the Delta
Conveyance Project could have captured enough water for 9.8 million people’s yearly usage.

The Governor has advanced efforts to move the Delta Conveyance Project forward, including DWR’s
certification of a final environmental impact report in December 2023 and securing financial support

from water agencies throughout the state serving a majority of Californians. And while the project has
received some necessary permits, its path forward is burdened by complicated regulatory frameworks and
bureaucratic delays.

The importance of protecting the reliability of the State Water Project is too great to allow the Delta
Conveyance Project to be mired by unnecessary delays — making last week’s wins even more important.

Protecting Californians’ water— in the Delta and from the tap

Last week DWR submitted a certification of consistency for the Delta Conveyance Project. The certification
— submitted to the Delta Stewardship Council — documents that the Delta Conveyance Project is
consistent with the Delta Plan, as required by the Delta Reform Act.

The Delta Reform Act protects two important goals: it protects both the Sacramento-San Joaquin River
Delta ecosystem and a reliable statewide water supply. By filing a certification of consistency, DWR
confirms that the Delta Conveyance Project can protect both Californians’ water supply and their
environment. Next, the Delta Stewardship Council will review the submission and make their determination.

Advancing planning and design

Also last week, the California Court of Appeal for the Third District paved the way for the DWR to resume
key work related to the planning and design of the Delta Conveyance Project.

Specifically, the court of Appeal ruled that DWR can proceed with key “geotechnical” work — for example,
soil boring and related testing — to help refine the Delta Conveyance Project’s planning and design.

The court’s ruling rejects a tactic that opponents of the Delta Conveyance Project have used to delay key
planning and design work for the last year and a half. While that work has been delayed, the Governor and
DWR have been working to do everything within their power to protect Californians’ water supplies — which
is why DWR continues to push forward with the certification of consistency for the Delta Conveyance
Project.

The ruling last week rejected a previous decision from a lower court in June 2024 granting a preliminary
injunction that had blocked DWR from conducting this preliminary geotechnical work, concluding that DWR
was first required to complete the certification-of-consistency process.



In its ruling last week, the Court of Appeal completely vindicated the administration's legal position. The
court rejected the argument that the preliminary geotechnical work required a certification of consistency
under the Delta Reform Act — a requirement that protected bureaucratic red tape more than the Delta. This
decision paves the way for the geotechnical work to proceed after further proceedings in the trial court, with
or without the certification of consistency for the Delta Conveyance Project. And the Court of Appeal
confirmed that courts should give “great weight” to the judgment of the Delta Stewardship Council — the
state agency responsible for protecting the Delta and administering the Delta Reform Act, which had
previously rejected opponents’ challenges to the geotechnical work.

Learn more about the Delta Conveyance Project



Beiling Peint

Who runs your water company?

—

oy

- o

Water flows from a kitchen faucet in Los Angeles County. {Mel Meleon,/Los Angeles Times)

@:‘a By Ian James
; Staff Writer
How democratic is your water utility?

Does everyone who is registered to vote get to choose their leaders in
elections? Or do only property owners get to vote for the managers?
Maybe the public has no say at all in selecting the people who make

decisions that determine safe and affordable drinking water?

“We see significant differences based on democracy,” said Kristin Dobbin,
a researcher at UC Berkeley. “It really does influence the outcomes of a

water system.”

In a new study she led, it turns out that water utilities where all voters



have a say in choosing leaders tend to perform better.

I contacted Dobbin to learn more about what she and her colleagues

discovered about what they call “water democracy” in California.

The researchers analyzed nearly all of the state’s residential water
suppliers, more than 2,400 of them. They looked at three categories: those
where all registered voters can elect board members; those where only
property owners can; and those where people have no vote in choosing

decision-makers. Fully 25% of the systems fall into this last category.

In 2012, California became the first state in the nation to declare access to
clean, accessible and affordable drinking water a human right. The
researchers wanted to see how these different types of utilities have fared

in achieving that.

They already knew more than 700,000 Californians rely on water systems
that are failing to meet drinking water standards, according to the State

Water Resources Control Board, and an additional 1.8 million have

systems considered “at risk” of failing.

The study, published this month in the journal Nature Water, found that
13% of water utilities with limited voting rights are identified as “failing,”
similar to those where customers can’t vote on leaders. For fully

democratic water systems, only 9% fall into that category.

Fully democratic water purveyors, which tend to be larger, also have
significantly fewer cases of E. coli contamination from sewage leaks or

agricultural runoff.

Those with the most cases of bacterial contamination are water utilities
with no elected boards that are run by companies or mobile home parks.
These serve many low-income communities and tend to serve more

African Americans.

“We find very clearly that low-income communities of color are less likely

to have water democracy than others,” Dobbin said.



The group of for-profit utilities led by unelected managers is also more
likely to rely on a single source of water rather than diversifyving, which
Dobbin said puts them more at risk of an emergency if a well goes dry or

tests reveal contamination.

Growing numbers of Californians are also struggling to afford the rising

costs of their water bills. And on affordability, the group that performs the

worst is utilities that allow only property owners, not all registered voters,
to vote. The researchers found the utilities with the most democracy

perform much better in delivering affordable water.

One caveat: Another recent study, led by UC Davis professor Samuel
Sandoval Solis, examined who is leading nearly 700 public water agencies
in California, and found that Latinos, as well as Black and Indigenous
people, remain significantly underrepresented on their boards, as do

women.

Here's a look at other news about water, the environment and climate

change this week:

Water news this week

I wrote about how tribes are urging Los Angeles to
in the Owens Valley. In addition to siphoning water from streams into its
aqueduct, the Department of Water and Power says the city has 96 wells it
can use to pump groundwater. Indigenous leaders told me the pumping
has dried up springs and meadows. DWP says the water is used locally for
purposes including controlling dust on the dry bed of Owens Lake, and

that the city is taking steps to ensure protection of the environment.

Meanwhile, in a unanimous vote, the board of the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California, which delivers water for 19 million people,
: Shivaji Deshmukh, who leads the

Inland Empire Utilities Agency. His appointment comes nearly nine

months after the board fired general manager Adel Hagekhalil after an
investigation into allegations of discrimination that exposed divisions

within the agency.



Up north along the California-Oregon border, one year after the last of
four dams was dismantled on the Klamath River, tribes and
environmentalists say the river and its salmon are starting to rebound.
Damon Goodman, regional director of the group California Trout, says
shortly after the dams were removed, “the fish returned in greater
numbers than I expected and maybe anyone expected,” Debra Utacia Krol
reports in the Arizona Republic. Oregon Public Broadcasting also reports
that Chinook salmon have returned to southern Oregon for the first time

in more than a century.

In a new report, researchers say President Trump's proposed budget
would slash funding for federal programs aimed at bringing clean drinking
water to Native communities by about $500 million, a nearly 70%

decrease. The researchers, part of an initiative called Universal Access to

Clean Water for Tribal Communities, said the proposal would reverse

“hard-won progress toward clean, reliable water supplies for Native

communities,” and theyre urging Congress to reject the cuts.

More climate and environment news

California hasn’t issued an emergency plea for the public to conserve
energy, known as a Flex Alert, since 2022. As my L.A. Times colleague
Hayley Smith reports, much of the credit for that goes to new battery

energy storage, which has grown more than 3,000% since 2020.

The Trump administration plans to further cut staff at the Environmental
Protection Agency and the Interior Department. Inside Climate News'

Katie Surma reports that the Interior Department plans to slash about

2,000 positions affecting national parks, endangered species and research.
The plan surfaced in a court case after a judge temporarily blocked the
administration from cutting staff during the government shutdown.—

Earlier this year, my colleague Grace Toohey wrote about problems in
Ventura County during the Thomas fire of 2017 and the Mountain fire of



2024, when firefighters saw hydrants run dry and found themselves shor
tof water. Assemblymember Steve Bennett (D=Ventura) introduced

legislation requiring Ventura County water suppliers to take various
steps to try to prevent that, including having 24 hours of backup power to
pump water for firefighting. Gov. Gavin Newsom signed the bill, which

Bennett says is “implementing the lessons learned” from the fires.

Unsubscribe | Manage marketing email preferences | Terms of Service | Privaey Policy | Do Nat Sel]

Advertisers have no control over editorial decisions or content, Place an ad or classified.

Copyright © 2025, Los Angeles Times
2300 E. Imperial Highway, El Segundo, CA go245
1-800-LA-TIMES
latimes.com

A

cimes




PRESS RELEASE: Restore the Delta Responds to New “Affordable
California” Ballot Initiative and Governor’s Push to Fast-Track
Delta Conveyance Project

% mavensnolebook.comi2025/1 0/24/press-release-restore-the-delfa-responds-to-new-affordable-cakfornia-ballot-indkative-and-govemors-push-to-fast-track-delta-
canveyanos-project/

Delta Conveyance Project Restore the Dalla October 24, 2025 Octlober 24, 2025

Press release from Restore the Della:

On Tuesday, October 21, the California Chamber of Commerce filed a request for a ballot initiative
misleadingly titled the “Building an Affordable California” initiative. The proposal seeks to streamline
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for so-called “essential”
infrastructure projects, including major water, transportation, housing, and energy developments.

Under the initiative, "essential projects” are defined so broadly that virtually any public, private, or utility
infrastructure project could qualify—paving the way for large-scale construction without the environmental
review and community protections CEQA provides.

“This is a direct attack on environmental justice communities, Tribal sovereignty, and the ecosystems that
sustain our state,” said Morgen Snyder, Director of Policy and Programs at Restore the Delta. “At a
time when California residents are on the verge of losing their SNAP benefits and healthcare, framing this
initiative as ‘affordable’ is frankly disrespectful. While housing affordability is a real crisis, removing
community voices and environmental safeguards for the sake of industry profits is a massive step in the
wrong direction.”



The proposal follows a growing wave of legislative efforts to weaken CEQA in the name of speeding up
large infrastructure and housing projects—despite the fact that many of these recent streamlining measures
have not yet been implemented or evaluated. If passed, the new initiative would:

comment, which places an undue burden on impacted communities — often with fewer resources —
effectively eliminating or severely limiting their ability to provide input and advocate for mitigation of
harms.

+ Undermine AB 52 Tribal consultation requirements, replacing them with vague, limited language that
weakens tribal sovereignty and confidentiality.

« Leave mitigation decisions entirely to the lead agency, giving developers and state departments
unchecked authority to define their own environmental accountability.

Notably, the proposed ballot language defines an “essential water project” as one that repairs, replaces,
improves, or augments public water systems — or falls under the state’s Water Resilience Portfolio. Under
this definition, the controversial Delta Conveyance Project would almost certainly qualify as an “essential
project.”

That designation would effectively shield the Delta Tunnel from meaningful CEQA review — silencing Delta
communities and ignoring the project’s massive environmental and economic consequences. The Delta
region supports a $780 million recreation and tourism economy, a $1.5 billion commercial fishing economy,
and $5 billion in agricultural production — all of which could be undermined by the project’s disruption of
Delta flows and ecosystems.

The Chamber’s proposal coincides with Governor Gavin Newsom’s announcement this week celebrating
new “wins” for the Delta Conveyance Project, including a court decision allowing preliminary geotechnical
work to resume and the Department of Water Resources’ submission of a Certification of Consistency with
the Delta Plan.

Restore the Delta cautioned that these developments are not victories for Californians, but rather signals of
a deeper pattern of state leadership prioritizing politically connected water agencies over the Delta’s
ecological and economic health.

“The Governor’s framing of the Delta Tunnel as a climate solution is profoundly misleading,” Snyder added.
“It will not create new water, it will only reroute it — deepening harm to Delta communities, Tribal resources,
and ecosystems that are already at a breaking point. There will be appeals and debate around whether this
project is even consistent with the Delta Reform Act's coequal goals: protecting the Delta and ensuring
reliable statewide water supplies.”

Restore the Delta calls on California’s elected leaders to reject backroom attempts to gut environmental
review and instead focus on truly sustainable, community-driven solutions for water resilience such as
investments in regional self-sufficiency, ecosystem restoration, and equitable access to clean water for all
Californians.



REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
ON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS
NOVEMBER 12, 2025

Reservair Storage an

11.
Engineer’s Report

LSG-3

« Located in San Gabriel Canyon, just below Morris Dam, it reprasents

Upper District's primary point of delivery of untreated imported water for

groundwater replenishment to the San Gabriel Valle

¥

= Typical delivery rate is about 190 cfs [or about 375 AF per day)

-3

Kan Gabriel Canvon Spreading Grownds

Imported Deliveries to 5an Gabriel Canyon

Imported Deliveries through USG
20,000
£ 15000
o 9,927
& 10,000
o o

0 ]

500
400
g
— 300
b
& 200
£ 103
100
. ] ] o o o
a
September 2025 October 2015

rd
e S S e S RO '-
= 54 FUTT LRSS THUAR LAST ASOMTH & -
R wA W T LR 4.2 FEET WAORE THAN LAST TEAR T Gl -
. STORMGE (LA KALT) [REPREALNTY £2,000 AF) - HE
L
g Ve Siyrage Sapac .
E Cogenail Dam AT AR : e i
= San Gabril Dam dd b BF i
Merra Clam 8.7 AF ]
E Totw Sacrage Capcaty 53354 AF N
g Contaned Mremus Pasl 10 300 AF Oy
batard 1 Hesarasan O
= r1 | b
I ot 1T AR
Dkt IR IS ] =
L =
TIr—— -
- i
,J‘\' — — 5T -‘-‘, A A Lt e
YRR
: r : Reservoir Flow
Giroundwater Elevation Ax ok October 1, 1024
September / October 2023 o
Groundwnter Difference from | Dhifference from "
Elevation (ft) prior moath | f) pmir vear | i
October 25, 2024 2447 = -
September 26, 2025 2503 P an
October 24, 2025 2489 =] 4 4.2 15
M
0 ]
Lrntreated Imported Water in Cyelic Storage Accounts E S Ml Lyt hicar s
Winflow (rh} = Dottho {chs)
Produger Cyvelie Stotage $0.000 AF
MWD Cyebe Storage (For UD RDA Delivery ) 157 000 AF
Dither Cyclic Storags 230K AF
Total 230,000 AF*
*Hepresents aboat 29 feet of groundaater elevation m the Key Well

September 2025

W Upper Digtrict

Ceotober 2025

® Three Valleys

W San Gabriel Distrct

® Thres Valleys/ MWD

® Upper District

* On September 24, 2025, all deliveries ceased due to the reported detection of Golden Mussels at Silverwood Lake by County Staff



UPPER

0 WATER

q‘.‘
-_—

Ruinfull

REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
ON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS
NOVEMBER 12, 2025

= Data are readily available on a daily basis and are indicative of comparative amount of rainfall in the 5an Gabriel Valley [percent of average)

»m

1 g

CURBENT YEAR
FUURFALL = 1.50
INCHES ®

RAINFALL 1N INCHES

"Dt i of Octolesr TL, IS

™ !
CUBENT YEAS
— ELAINFALL 5 104
- 7 INCHES
LAST YE&AR
FAMFALL ,."ll
.
AVIRAGE
s RAREALL

Ma A May Jum

ACCUMLILATED RAFSFALL
AT PUiBiO AT Dkl | ETATION MO 8403

I

"Data a3 of Doteles 11, POFS

Y 1
dev el Ay Sep Oct  Now  Dec  Jdam

EMD OF MONTH

ATTEEE ———
[ .
[ R —

ACCLBAIL ATTT RANF ALL AT SAN GAIITUE L [IAM
FLAIMF ALL STATION &0 4350-E

P Mar A May  Jun

Wirter Chealfty

= Water Systems are required by the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to collect water quality data from source wells and provide the results
to DOW Pursuant to Title 22 (Water guality data collected through Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster's Basinwide Groundwater Quality

Monitoring Program)

= During October 2025, 47 wells were sampled under Title 22
* During September 2025, 56 wells were sampled under Title 22

* During September 2025, Stetson Engineers Inc. received no public notice of wells shut down due to contamination



248 E. Foothill Bivd., Sulte 200 " .
u PPER Monrovia, CA. 91014 P 626-403-2297 = infoBusgvmwd.org

WATER

UFFER TAN GAKEIEL VALLEY
MUSBCIFAL WATER DISTERCT

MEMORANDUM

12
GENERAL MANAGER'S
REPORT

General Manager's Monthly Report
November 12, 2025

Water Supply Update

Baldwin Park Key Well: 248.9 feef on 10/24/25 N e —— N\

= San Gabriel Canyon: 17,956 AF combined Mone
P\#\;\x storage as of 10/28/25 MWD Cyclic Account Balance (9/30/25):
== San Gabriel Reservoir: inflow 0 cfs; 157,200 AF
releqse O cfs Rainfall as of 10/31/25:
Morris Reservoir: inflow 25 cfs; release 40 cfs * 1.30" - Puddingstone Dam
e 3.646" - San Gabriel Dam

\ AN J

MWD Water Supply Conditions as of October 27, 2025, are summarized as follows:

Reservoir Capacity Current Storage
San Luis (SWP share) 1.06 MAF 78%. B24 TAF

Lake Croville 3.42 MAF 54%. 1.84 MAF
Lake Powell 24.3 MAF 2B%, 6.81 MAF
Lake Mead 26.1 MAF 32%. 8.25 MAF
*Storage volumes are in units of Million Acre-Feet (MAF), or Thousand Acre-Feet [TAF)

l] g Drought Actions
WSCP status: Level 2, 20% conservation target, 3 day/week outdoor watering summer,
20 2 day/week outdoor watering in winter

Water Use Efficiency
&
A9 Residential WaterSmart Rebates EE - gommamiql WaterSmart Rebates
j @) Since July 2025 - $76,273 :: Since July 2025 - $34,100

Water Smart Home Kits
Homes Served This Month: 74

e

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ' Page lof 2




Education and Outreach

T

"

Watershed Restoration Program N
« On Saturday, October 18", Upper Water, along with U.S. Forest Service staff, was h
joined by 80 volunteers to plant 257 free soplings in the San Gabriel Mountains near "|
Crystal Loke Campground. Volunteers included Girl and Boy Scout froops, local
college students, and members of community and nonprofit organizotions.

Education Programs
¢ The Mefropolitan Water District of Southem California offers the Community Partnering
Pragram (CPP), which provides up to $3.000 in sponsorship funding to community-
based organizations, public agencies, and educational institutions. Eligible CPP
projects must include water-related educational outreach activities such as
workshops, water festivals, after-school programs, exhibits, promotional materials, and
native plont or California Friendly Garden signage.

Two applicants were selected for CPP funding:

o City of Rosemead - "Collaborative Water Wise Rain Garden Events": Supports
fhe purchaose of materials ond supplies for rain garden workshops promoting
water conservation.

o Food Explorafion and Discovery (Food Ed) - "Water Wise Garden Discovery":
Supports the purchase of materials and supplies for developing, installing, and
maintaining multiple water education gardens that will serve the community )
as outdoor learning spaces.

I
&

P

Finance and Administration

\ YTD Use of Funds as of 930,25 - $8.54M
Financial Highlights through 9/30/25

‘ N

» Treated water sales: 1,207 AF " M"'"l:;; tmﬂ
Untreated water sales. 5,100 AF (3%), 50.28

Recycled water sales: 880 AF B Water Cuality and
» YTD net operating revenues: $358K Supply [2%), 50.16

Q00
=101
.

,_
=+
.

GEaT

B Stormwater
(<1%], 50.01

-

=

B (Capital
[<1%), 50.00

Page 2 of 2




13.
Metropolitan Report

Summary Report for
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
Board Meeting
August 19, 2025

CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

Approved new Ad Hoc Committee on Colorado River Negotiations and appointed as Chair,
Adén Ortega, Vice Chair, Nancy Sutley, and members David De Jesus, Cynthia Kurtz,
Gloria Cordero, and Mark Gold. (Agenda Item 6B)

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

Authorized an agreement with Kaygen Inc., in an amount not to exceed $473.640 for
MyWarehouse Shopping Cart Replacement project with the understanding that staff evaluate
whether the project can be made beneficial to other utilities. (Agenda Item 7-1)

Authorized an on-call agreement with Allied Reliability, Inc. for a not-to-exceed total amount of
$1.75 million for a maximum period of three years, to provide asset reliability services.
(Agenda Item 7-2)

Awarded a $1,454,000 construction contract to MMC Inc. to replace the San Jacinto Diversion
Structure slide gates. (Agenda Item 7-3)

Awarded a $370,900 construction contract to American Wrecking Inc. for the removal of three
existing gate frames in support of the San Gabriel Tower Improvements. (Agenda Item 7-4)

Reviewed and considered the California Public Utilities Commission Final Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report, adopted the Commission’s findings. and authorized the General
Manager to grant a permanent easement to Southern California Edison for overhead electrical
transmission purposes on Metropolitan fee-owned property in the County of Riverside and
identified as Assessor Parcel Number 189-110-011 and 189-120-005. (Agenda Item 7-5)

Authorized the General Manager to convert seventeen Operations and Maintenance Assistant
positions at the Gene Pumping Plant from recurrent to regular part-time status with
corresponding Position Control Numbers and Human Resources to take all necessary actions to
implement the conversion, including negotiating any required language with the unions.
(Agenda Item 7-6)

OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

Adopted the resolution establishing the Ad Valorem property tax rate for fiscal year 2025/26.
(Agenda Item 8-1)



Authorized an increase of $300,000 to an existing agreement with HydroFocus, Inc. for a new
not-to-exceed total amount of $455,000 for environmental monitoring services. (Agenda
ltem 8-2)

Authorized the Local Supply Exchange Framework; delegated authority to the General Manager
to enter into agreements to facilitate the exchange; and amended the Metropolitan Administrative
Code to facilitate exchanges. The General Manager shall provide a written assessment of
exchange agreements involving supplies receiving Local Resources Program funding and
provide a written status report following the first 100,000 acre-feet of exchange activity
facilitated by Metropolitan in addition to periodic updates. (Agenda Item 8-3)

Authorized the General Manager to enter into a new three-year sole source agreement with
WaterWise Consulting Inc. for inspection and verification services for Metropolitan’s
Conservation Programs, for a total agreement not to exceed $4,500,000; by the end of the third
year, the General Manager was directed to conduct a competitive process for the services
provided by this agreement. (Agenda Item 8-4)

Adopted the resolution declaring approximately 5,497 acres of Metropolitan-owned real property
in the Sacramento San Joaquin Delta, commonly known as Webb Tract, as exempt surplus land
under the Surplus Land Act. (Agenda Item 8-5)

Authorized a new agricultural lease agreement with Bouldin Farming Company for rice farming
and related uses on portions of Metropolitan-owned real property in the Sacramento-San Joaquin
Bay Delta known as Webb Tract according to the price and terms given in closed session.
(Agenda ltem 8-6)

Authorized a new agricultural lease agreement with Lundberg Family Farms for rice farming and
related uses on portions of Metropolitan-owned real property in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Bay
Delta known as Bacon Island according to the price and terms given in closed session,

(Agenda ltem 8-7)

Authorized a four percent cost of living salary adjustments for the General Counsel, General
Auditor, and Ethics Officer. (Agenda Item 10-1)

Authorized a $15,000 one-time performance-based bonus to General Counsel. Authorized a
%£30,000 one-time performance-based bonus to General Manager to be paid out at the end of year
upon General Manager departure. Authorized a 3.25% merit-based salary increase to General
Auditor. (Agenda Item 10-2)

THIS INFORMATION SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED THE OFFICIAL MINUTES
OF THE MEETING.

All current month materials, and materials after July 1, 2021 are available on the public website
here: https:/mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

This database contains archives from the year 1928 to June 30, 2021:
hitps://bda.mwdh2o.com/Pages/Default. aspx




14.
WQA REPORT

Summary Report for the
San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority
October 22, 2025

The Board of Directors discussed the following items:

« Report on Cash and Investments — 3@ Quarter 2025

A closed session was held pursuant fo Government Code 54956.9 Section(d)(4] -
Conference with Legal Counsel re: Initiation of Litigation (settlement opportunities with
potential defendants) — two (2) matters.

lofl1|Page




WATERMAST?EE;
REPORT
Summary Report for the
Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster
Regular Board Meeting

October 01, 2025

¢« The Board of Directors received and filed the Three-year Purchased Water Plan
for fiscal years 2025-26 to 2027-28 as presented.

e The Board of Directors received and filed the Audit Report for fiscal year 2024-25
as presented.

¢« The Board of Directors reaffirmed the Cash Investment Policy as presented.

» The Board of Directors approved the revised Water Quality Monitoring Program
Policy as presented.

« The Board of Directors approved the expenditures associated with PFAS
monitoring withing the approved Watermaster budget.

e The Board of Directors authorized the Executive Officer to sign a Cost-Sharing
Agreement between Watermaster, SGVMWD, TVMWD and USGVMWD for the
Golden Mussel Control Plan.

 The Board of Directors authorized the purchase of 2,351.92 of cyclic storage
water from USGVMWD for the City of Arcadia's individual producer cyclic storage
account.

s A closed session was held regarding the Executive Officer's -month performance
evaluation. No action was taken.

+ The Board of Directors approved the Executive Officer's 6&-month performance
evaluation.

: ‘ UPPER lofl|Page
o RMRIISE
~—



UPPER

248 E, Foothill Blvd., Suite 200
Menrovia, CA, #1014

Pa246-443-2297 £ info@usgvmwd, org

WATER

UPFER LAN GABRRIEL VALLEY

MUMICIFAL WATER DESTRICT

MEMORANDUM

16.
AB 1234 Compliance Report

Directors' Activity Report - (AB 1234)

In accordance with CA Government Code Section 53232.3 (d)

QOctober 2025
Anthony R. Fellow, Division 1
Date Event Description/Topics
Cctober 2025 Mo reportable activity
Charles M. Trevifio, Division 2
Date Event Description/Topics
October 2025 Mo reportable activity
Edward Chavez, Division 3
Date Event Description/Topics
October 2025 Mo reportable activity
Katarina Garcia, Division 4
Date Event Description/Topics
October 2025 Mo reportable activity
Jennifer Santana, Division 5
Date Event Description/Topics
October 2025 Mo reportable activity

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT




